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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF ELAVON FINANCIAL SERVICES DAC

Repert on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Elavon Financial Services DAC (‘the Company) and its subsidiaries
(‘the Group’) for the year ended 31 December 2020, which comprise the Company and Group Statement of
Income, the Company and Group Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Company and Group Statement
of Financial Position, the Company and Group Statement of Changes in Equity, the Company and Group
Statement of Cash flows and the related notes 1 to 35 to the Group financial statements and notes A to M to the
Company financial statements including the summary of significant accounting policies set out in note 2. The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is Irish Law and International Financial

Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and Article 4 of the IAS regulation with respect
to the Group financial statements.

In our opinion the accompanying financial statements:
#  give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities and financial posttion of the Company and Group as at 31
December 2020 and of the Company and Group’s loss for the year then ended;
have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union; and
have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2014 and, as regards the
Group financial statements, Article 4 of the 1AS regulation.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (Ireland) (ISAs (Ireland)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the Company and Group in accordance with ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of financial statements in Ireland, including the Ethical Standard issued by the Irish Auditing and Accounting
Supervisory Authority (IAASA), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Our evaluation of the director’s assessment of the Company and Group’s ability to continue to adopt the going
concem basis of accounting included:

*  An assessment of the reasonableness of the Company amd Group’s going concern assessment;

e  Evaluating management’s board approved three-year cash flow forecasts, which included the impact of
Covid-19 on their future performance;

s  Assessed the assumptions used by management to develop these forecasts by reviewing industry data
and other external information and comparing these with management’s estimates to determine if they
provided corroborative or contradictory evidence in relation to management’s assumptions;

=  Evaluation of stress testing performed by management and consideration of whether the stresses
applied are appropriate for assessing going concern;

#  Testing the accuracy of Management’s forecasting by reviewing previous forecasts and comparing to
actual results;

®  An assessment of the availability of financial support from the ultimate Parent U.S Bancorp, should it
be required, including a review of the guarantee received by the Group in respect of potential airline
exposure.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF ELAVON FINANCIAL SERVICES DAC

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified a material uncertainty relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Company or the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern for a period of af least twelve months from the date when the financial statements
arc authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.

Key Audit Matters

Key andit maticrs are those matiers that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material
misstatement {whether or not due to fraud) we identified, including those which had the greatest effect on: the
overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement leam,
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We summarise below the key audit matters in forming our audit opinion above, together with an overview of the

principal audit procedures performed to address each matter and, where relevant, key observations arising from
those precedures.
Key audit matter — revenue recognition

How the matter was addressed in our audit

(Merchant services)

There is a presumption under Internationat
Standards on Auditing that there is a
significant risk of fraud in the timing of
{ revenue recognition lcading to material
misstalements of revenue overall. This is
because revenue is typically an area of
particular focus by rcaders of the financial
statements and can be subject to judgement
as to when the income can be appropriately
recognised.

Merchant services revenue is the most
significant revenue stream and will warrant
additional focus as the processing and
recognition of the merchant transactions is
dependent on operational IT systems through
which the payments are processed and
controlled and the operating effectiveness of
key manual and IT application controls
underpinning cach stage in the transaction
cycle. Accordingly, our audit approach was
predominatcly controls based including 1T
conltrol reliance.

Refer to page 32 (accounting policy) and
page 41 (financial disclosures).

Tested the design, implementation and operating effectiveness of
key manual and IT application controls underpinning revenue
{merchant services), including controls around the on-boarding
and credit underwriting of merchants, merchant payments and
exceptions and master file maintenance.

Tested the relevant IT application control supporting the upload of
revenue transactions from the merchant processing system to the
primary general ledger and tested the subsequent reconciliation of
this merchant processing data to the gencral ledger to assess the
completeness and accuracy of revenue and settlement data feeds
into the general ledger.

Reviewed and assessed the results of contro] testing performed as
part of Elavon Inc’s Service Organisation Control Report for 2020.
Elavon Financial Services DAC is a user of key sysiems and
processes operaled by Elavon Inc. The controls tested included 1T
General controls and IT Application controls on key operational
IT systems which underpin revenue and settlement as well as key
manual controls underpinning the processing of merchant revenue,
Certain relevant controls included in the scope of the Service
Organisation Control Report formed part of our controls reliance
strategy.

Performed substantive testing on a sample basis agreeing revenue
from customers to source documentation.

Assessed the cul off of revenue to ensure the recognition of
revenuc is reflected in the correct period through both controls and
subslantive audil testing.

Ensured appropriate disclosure has been made in the ycar-end
financial statcments.

Based on the procedures performed we consider the basis for the
recognition of revenue and the related balances to be reasonable.
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Kev audit matier — impairment of

pomdwill

Goodwill is a significant balance sheet itern.
Goodwill at 31 December 2020 amounts 1o
€332m of which €136m relates to pre
existing  goodwill from  historical
acquisitions and the remainder of €198m is
as a result of the SAGE PAY acquisition.

Management's cvaluation of the camying
value of goodwill for impairment involves
the comparison of the recoverable amount of
goodwill of each cash generating unit
(*CGU") 1o its carrying value as at 30
Scptember 2020. Management used the
value in use approach in performing this
assessment. The results of this assessment
are as follows:

CGU Carrying Recoverable
amount €000 amount €000
(31.12.20) (30.09.20)

EMS 136,200 1.580.479

Opayo | 198,453 356,317

The determination of whether an impairment
charge is required involves management
judgement, including identifying on which
CGU level the goodwill is tested and
cstimating the future performance of the
business and the discount rate applied to
these future cash flows,

Considering the impact of COVID 19 on the
futurc economic performance of Elavon,
there is a higher dcgree of uncertainty
regarding the precise accuracy of
impairment estimation calculations for
goodwill.

Refer to page 37 (accounting policy) and
page 47 (financial disclosurcs).

How the maiter was addressed in onz audii

We obtained and reviewed management's impairment assessment
of goodwill.

We assessed the reasonableness of the determination of the cash
generating units.

We critically assessed the discount rate and growth rate used in the
discounted cash flow models, with the focus on the methodology
used to estimate the key assumptions.

We challenged the other key assumptions through comparison to
external sources and where appropriate those used by peers and to
other economic metrics.

We reperformed the calculations used in the model to check the
accuracy and agreed the key inputs 1o underlying sources.

We assessed managements future cash flow forecasts by:

¢ Testing that the forecasis agreed 1o the last annual
operating plan/budget approved by management;

+ Considered current year performance against plan and
discussed key deviations (Impact of COVID 19) with
management; and

¢ Performed independent sensitivity analysis on the
discount rate and growth rates used in the model.

Ensured appropriate disclosure has been made in the year-end
financial statements.

Based on the evidence obtained we consider the valuation of
goodwill to be reasonable.
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Key audit mafter — recoverahility of

How the matter was addressed in our audit

deferred tax assets on losses Torward

The recoverability of the deferred tax assets
(DTA) on losses forward relies on judgments
relating {0 the probability, timing and
sufficiency of future taxable profits, which in
turn is based on assumptions concerning
future cconomic conditions and business
performance. This is highly subjective given
the significant uncertainty rclated to future
cconomic outcomes including the impact of
COVID 19.

Refer to page 35 {accounting policy) and
page 43 (financial disclosures).

We assessed management’s ability to estimate future taxable
income, considering past performance versus past projections.

We challenged the reasonablencss of managements assumplions
including the growth, profitability and economic assumptions.

We assessed the accuracy of the deferred tax calculations.

Ensured appropriate disclosure has been made in the year-end
financial statements.

Based on the evidence obtaincd we consider the valuation of the
deferred tax asset to be reasonable.

Key audit maticr —acquisition of sage

How the matter was addressed in our audif

pay- IFRS 3 husiness combination

Elavon completed the acquisition of Sage
Pay, a division of the Sage Group plc on 11
March 2020 for a purchase price of €273m.
The net assets acquired, consisting of
working capital, share capital and intangible
asseis were valued at €69.9m, therefore
resulting in the recognition of €203m (at 11}
March 2020} of goodwill. This transaction
falls under the scope of IFRS 3 Business
Combinations which requires  significant
management judgement in determining the
fair value of assets acquired, including
intangibles assets which are inherently
judgemental.

Qur key audit matter focuses on the
valuation of the nct assets at acquisition date.

Refer to page 29 (accounting policy) and
page 39 (financial disclosures).

Woe obtained and cvaluated the purchasc agreement.

Woe cvaluated managements determination of the fair value of the
net asscts acquired through our substantive testing.

We challenged managements methodology and assumptions
underlying the valuation of intangible assets by:

*  Assessing and recalculating the discount rate and growth
rate used based on external market data, and comparing
these rates to the rates used by management;

e  Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation
methodology applicd by management;

e  Assessed all other assumptions and obtained evidence to
support their appropriatencess; and

¢ Reperformed the calculations used in the model to check
accuracy and agree the key inputs to underlying sources.

Ensured appropriate disclosure has been made in the year-end
financial statements.

Based on the evidence obtained we consider the valuation of the
net asscts acquired to be rcasonable.

Our application of materiality

We apply the concept of materiality in planning and performing the audit and in cvaluating the impact of
misstatements, if any. Materiality is an expression of the relative significance or importance of a matter in the
context of the financial statemenis. Misstatements in the financial statcments are material if they, individually or
in aggregate, could reasonably be cxpected to influence the economic decisions of users taken based on the

financial statements.

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. We set certain quantitative thresholds for
materiality. These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the
nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures on the individual financial statcment line items and disclosures
and in evaluating the effect of misstatements, both individually and on the financial statements as a whole. Based
on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows:
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Overall materiality Overall materiality: €2,133,300 Overall materiality: €2,198,000

How we determined it 5% of prior year profit before tax.

As Elavon is currently loss making we have reassessed our benchmark for
malteriality. We applied an absolute value to the 2020 forecasted loss before
1ax balance and compared this to our materiality threshold in the prior year

Rationale for the materiality and have selected the lowet of the two which is the prior year materiality, We

benchmark applied the benchmark of profit before 1ax because in our view this is a metric
against which the recurring performance of the Group {and the Company) is
commonly measured by its stakcholders.
We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them
Reporting threshold misstatements identified during our audit above €63,999 (Group audit) and

€65,940 (Company audit) as well as misstatements below that amount that,
in our view, warranied reporting for qualitative reasons.

An overview of the scope of our audit

As part of designing our audit, we asscsscd the risk of material missiatement in the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, and then designed and performed audit procedures responsive to those risks. In particular,
we looked at where the dircetors made subjective judgements such as making assumptions on significant
accounting cstimates.

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensurc that we performed sufficient work 1o be able to give an opinion on
the financial staicments as a whole, We uscd the outputs of a risk assessment, our undersianding of the Company
and the Group, its environment, controls and critical busincss processes, to consider qualitative factors in order to
ensure that we obtained sufficient coverage across all financial statement line items.

The Group financial statements are a consolidation of scventcen reporting units, including seven branches, ten
scparate lcgal entities, four of which are dormant.

All audit work on reporting units undertaken for the purposes of our Group audit opinion was performed by the
Group audit feam at the Group’s finance centre in Dublin.

We identificd and tested certain controls over key financial systems identified as part of our risk assessment,
including a review of general IT controls, the accounts preduction process, and controls addressing critical
accounting matters. From this work, we sought to place reliance on the Group’s internal controls wherever
possible.

We undertook substantive testing on significani transactions, balances, and disclosures, the extent of which was
based on various factors such as our overall assessment of the control environment, the effectiveness of controls
over individual systems, and the management of specific risks.

Other information

The Dircctors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report other than the financial statemenis and our auditor’s report thereon. Qur opinion on the
financial stalements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in
our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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Qur responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
matcrially inconsistent with the financial slatements or our knowiedge obtained in the course of the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparcnt matcrial
misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements
or a material misstatement of the other information, If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact,

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2014

Bascd solely on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, we report that:
® thc information given in the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements;
= the dircctors’ report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements;
= the accounting records of the Company and the Group were sufficient to permit the financial statements to
be readily and properly audited; and
» the financial statements are in agreement with the accounting rccords.

We have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, are
nccessary for the purposes of our audit of the Company and the Group.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Based on the knowledge and understanding of the Company and Group and its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the Directors’ repont.

The Companies Act 2014 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion, the disclosures of Directors’ remuncration and
transactions required by Sections 305 to 312 of the Act are not made.

The Companies Act 2014 also requires us to report to you if, in our opinion, the Company and Group has not provided
the information required by section 5(2) to (7) of the European Union (Disclosure of non-financial and diversity
Information by certain large undertakings and groups) Regulations 2017 for the year ended 31 December 2020 as
required by the European Union (Disclosure of non-financial and diversity Information by certain large institutions
and groups) (amendment) Regulations 2018, We have nothing to report in this regard.

Respective responsibilities

Responsibilities of Directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Directors’ responsibilitics statement set on page 12, the Directors are responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for
such internal conirol as they detcrming is necessary to cnable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or crror.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Company and Group’s ability
to continuc as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concem basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but 1o do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statemenis

Our objectives are to obtain rcasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantce that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (Ireland) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the JAASA’s
website at: hitp://www.iaasa. ie/petmedia/h2389013-1c6-458b-9b8a98202dc9cIa/Description of auditors
responsibilities for audit.pdf.

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Other matters which we are required to address

Following the recommendation of the Audit Committee of Elavon Financial Services DAC, we were appointed
by the Company and its subsidiaries on 3 August 2017 to audit the financial statements for the year ended 31
Deccember 2017. The period of total uninterrupted engagement including previous renewals and reappointments
of the firm is four years covering the years ending 2017 to 2020,

The non-audit services prohibited by IAASA’s Ethical Standard werc not provided to the Company or the
Group and we remain independent of the Company and the Group in conducting our audit.

Our audit opinion is consistent with the additional report to the Audit Committec we are required to provide in
accordance with ISA (Ireland) 260.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

Our report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Section 391 of the Companies
Act 2014. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters
we are required 1o state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by
law, we do not accept or assume responsibilily to anyone other than the Company and the Company*s members,
as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Micha¢l Tuohy

for and on behalf of Mazars

Chartered Accountants & Statutory Audit Firm
Harcourt Centre, Block 3,

Harcourt Road

Dublin 2

Date: 30" March 2021
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Directors’ Report
The Directors presenttheir report together with the audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December
2020,

Principal activities and business objectives

Elavon Financial Services DAC (‘the Bank') is licensed by the Central Bank of Ireland. The Bank’s ultimate parent
undertakingis U.S. Bancorp, a company incorporated in Delaware, U.S.A. which is also the parent of U.S. Bank
National Association (‘U.S. Bank’). As at 31 December 2020, U.S. Bancorp has assets of $554 bilfion {2019: $495
billion), deposits of $430 billion (2019: $362 billion) and loans of $298 billion (2019: $296 billion). Further detaifs of
the Bank’s parent undertakings are disclosed in Note 29 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. The Bank, its
branches and its subsidiaries are hereinafter referred to as ‘the Group’.

The Group's primary business objective is to support thegrowth of U.S. Bancorp’s Payments and Investment Services
businesses in Europe. Over the last number of years, this has been achieved through the development of relevant
product sets and through investment in both technology and people to deliver growth, improve customer
experience, driveefficiencies, maintain appropriate controls and maintain a highly engaged employee base.

The Group’s activities in Europe during 2020 were principally focused on the provision of:
» Elavon Merchant Services in respect of card and ecommerce transactions to merchants;
+» Global Corporate Trust Services for structured and securitised transactions; and
¢ Corporate Payment Systems to merchants, multinational corporations and governments with sophisticated
payment processing needs.

Elavon Merchant Services ('EMS’} is one of Europe’s largest merchant acquirers and is well positioned in all of the
key European acquiring markets. Merchant customers are from most areas of economic activity, induding retail,
hotel, restaurant, entertainment, fuel and travel.

Global Corporate Trust Services (‘GCTS’) is one of the premier providers of corporate trust services in the United
States and Europe, servingprivate and publiccompanies, government and tax -exempt entities, andfinancial services
companies. It has been a provider of comprehensive corporate trust services for nearly 100 years and the European
team has been activein theEuropean corporatetrust market for more than a decade. GCTS provides a widerange
of trustand agencyservices suchas corporate bondtrustee, calculation/paying agent, and collateral administration.

Review of business performance during the financial year

On 11 March 2020, Elavon Financial Services DAC purchased 100% of the stock of Sage Pay Europe Limited (Sage
Pay’), a well-known and established payments gateway business in the United Kingdom and Ireland. Following the
acquisition, Sage Pay was rebranded to trade as Opayo and the company name was changed to El avon Digital Europe
Limited. Elavon Digital Europe Limited {‘Opayo’} was a division of the Sage Group plc {‘SGE’), a FTSE-listed market
leader in cloud business management solutions. The acquisitionis part of the Group's strategy to assist growth as
the global economy becomes more digital and as businesses look to streamline their operations with software that
includes payments technology capabilities.

The COVID-19 pandemic has had a significant effect on the operating environment in 2020. Operationally, the bank
had been actively tracking the spread of COVID-19since the start of 2020 and invoked businiess continuity plans in
March. These plans includaed moving atmost all staff to remote working arrangements. This response was successful
and was executed without serviceinterruptionor other adverse consequences for customers or other stakeholders.

Financially, COVID-19 has had a meaningful effect on the revenues of the merchant services business. Societal
restrictions to limit the spread of the infection have reduced economic activity and affected the Group’s transaction
volumes across each of the sectors and jurisdictions it services. The Merchant Services business volume, as measured
in revenues, contracted by approximately 24%. These reduced volumes and revenues have persisted into 2021 and
areexpected to recover when COVID-19restrictions are lifted. Given this environment, the bank has taken steps to
curtail expenditures, Due to the acquisition of Opayoin March 2020, however, costs have increased by EUR 12.8
million. Expected credit|osses increased on the prioryear by EUR 1.6 million notingthat this position reflects positive
steps taken during the year to ensure that the bank’s credit risk position was well managed given the changein
operating environment.



Directors’ Report (continued)
Global Corporate Trust saw a decline of 21% intotal fee revenue. This decline was primarily due to the 2019 re-
organisation in order to segregate the regulated and non-regulated activities of the Group.

Strategic direction and business model

Whilst COVID-19 has caused a significant interruption of the previous growth trajectoryof the bank’s revenues, the
Group's operations in Europe continue to represent a significant investment on the part of the Group’s ulimate
parent, U.S. Bancorp, and is a key enabler of U.S. Bancorp’s international growth strategy.

The Group’s strategicdirection will continue to focus on payments and investments services markets. The Group is
well positioned for opportunities as the economies in which it operates recover when COVID-19 restrictions are
lifted. Continued growth will be supported both organically and through acquisitions with continued focus on the
value proposition and increased and enhanced product offerings.

Strategic goals are focused on completion of the integration of Opayo; technology enhancements, particufarly in
services to customers; expansion of the product set in both payments and i nvestment s ervices; and a continuing
focus on strong risk management, governance and financial resilience.

Key performance indicators
The Group has maintained strong capital andliquidity pesitions during 2020 and these measures of financial strength
will continueto bea focus in thefuture. Of significant note, is the capital contribution which the Bank received from
its parent, to offset the use of capita! for the acquisition of Opayo. Operating efficiency has deteriorated with the
reductioninrevenues in 2020 and reversing this will be a key focus of the Group in the coming years as the effects
of COVID-19 are unwound.

The Consaolidated Statement of Income and the Consolidated Statement of Finandal Position are set out on pages
15 & 17 respectively.

On a menthly basis, multiple key performanceindicators {'KPI’) are calculated based on internal measures and are
providedto the Bank's Executive Committee (see Note 26). The accounting basis for the internal measures may differ
from International Financial Reporting Standards {'IFRS’).

The internal KPIs reviewed (together with their 2020 full year measures) are as follows:

Loss after tax for 2020 of EUR 31.0 million (2019: EUR 32.3 million profit)

Fee, commission and leasing income for 2020 of EUR 250.0 million {2019: EUR 343.6 million}
Credit and debit volume for 2020 of EUR 84.2 billion {2019: EUR 110.9 billion}

Number of employees as at 31 December 2020 of 2,160 (2019: 2,233)

Total assets as at 31 December 2020 of EUR 10.2 billion (2019: EUR 8.8 billion)

Capital ratio as at 31 December 2020 of 49% (2019: 48%)

Operating efficiency ratio for 2020 of 129% (2019: 89%)

Group outlook

The effects of COVID-190on merchant services revenues have persisted into 2021. Therecoveryin theserevenues is
expected to be closely linked to the lifting of COVID-19 restrictions, noting that different sectors and jurisdictions
may recover with different trajectories depending on national decisions and whether sector specific restrictions may
persist, such as in travel related areas.

Inthelonger term, itis considered thatthe Group’s business mix, sound strategies and prudent business model puts
the Group ina strong position forthe years ahead. The Group has invested in personnel and infrastructure to ensure
itis well positioned into the future when economicactivity improves ineach jurisdiction. |n particular, this should
allowthe Groupto respond appropriately and effectively to the anticipated impacts ofincreased bankingregulation,
European legislation changes, political or further economic uncertainty and technological advances.
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Directors’ Report {continued}

The Group, as part of its strategic planning processes, has developed strategic business objectives to be delivered
over the planning horizon which are focused on products and segments with strong fundamentals and capable of
delivering solid revenue growth, Strategic action will be supported by an enhanced facus on operating efficiency to
support profitahility and drive competiveness.

The Group completed the purchase of Opayo inMarch 2020 which is animportant acquisitionin further developing
the merchant services business e-commerce capability as well as giving access to a broader client base, particularly
in the small and medium enterprise (SME) sector. The integration of the Opayo business is well advanced and
together with increasing merchant services acquiring volumes as COVID-19 restrictions are lifted, is expected to drive
revenue and net profit growth in future years.

Going concern
The Directors have a reasonable expectation that, having made appropriate enquiries, the Group has adequate

resources to continuein operationalexistence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, the Finandal Statements
are prepared on a geing concern basis.

Finandal risk management

Details of the Group's financial risk management objectives and policies are set outin Note 26 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Capital Management

Details of the Group's capital management compliance and objectives are set outin Note 32 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Prindpal risks and uncertainties

Risk management is an integral part of the Group’s business process. Risk management and governance
arrangements have been described in Note 26. The risks and uncertainties which are currently judged to have the
largest impact on the Group’s perfarmance are noted below:

= General economic conditions may negatively affect consumer s pending, resulting indeclines in retsil sales.
A worsening of the current financial market conditions could materially and adversely affect the Group's
financial condition and operations;

s The Group faces strong competition in its various markets and if it fails to compete successfully, market
share and profitability may decline;

» The Group is subject to changes in government and regulatory compliance regulations, as well as card
scheme membership requirements, Ensuring adherence to these regulations and requirements could result
in increased compliance costs for the Group and adversely affect operations and profi tability;

* Movements in foreign currency exchange rates may positively or adversely affect the Group. The
management of this risk is detailed in Note 26 to the Consolidated Financial Statements;

¢« The success of the Group is built upon a strong effective management team committed to achieving a
superior performance in eachof the divisions. The loss of key personnel could for atime havea significant
impact on business performance;

¢« 0On 31 December 2020, following anagreed transitionperiod, the United Kingd om withdrew fromthe
European Union. The Group had taken a number of steps, organisationally, to ensure thatdirectimpacts
from Brexit were largely mitigated. The potential broader economic effect of Brexit, threughincreased
traderestrictions, remain to be observed and these continue to be monitored closelyby the Group;

« In additionto the above, the Group is subject to operational risks. These indude technology and systems
execution risk, protection of cardholder data, information security breaches and data protection
compliance, compliance withcardschemes, payment card industry standards, business continuity planning
and disaster recovery;

¢ Adverseimpacts fromthe COVID-19 pandemic have persisted into 2021 and the recavery of revenues will
beclosely correlated to the unwindingof the adverse economiceffects of the pandemic on the sectors and
jurisdictions to which the Group provides services.
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Directors’ Report {continued)
Directors' and Secretary's shareholdings

The names of the persons who were Directors at any time during the year ended 31 December 2020 are listed on
page 8. Unless otherwise indicated, they served as Directors for the entire year.

The Directors and their families hadno interestsin theshares of the Bank as at 31 December 2020. The Directors’
and Secretary's interest in the ordinary shares of thé ultimate parent undertaking, U.S. Bancorp at 31 December
2020 and at 31 December 2019 are notdisclosed as they do notrepresent more than 1% of the nominal issued share
capital.

Directors’ responsibilities statement
The Directors are responsible for preparing the Directors’ Report and the Financial Statements in accordance with
Irish law and regulations.

Irish companylaw requires the Directors to prepare the Financial Statements for ea ch financial year. Under thatlaw
the Directors have el ected to prepare the FinancialStatements inaccordance with IFRS as adopted bythe EU. Under
company law, the Directors must not approve the Financial Statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true
and fair view of the assets, liabilities and financial position of the Group at the financial year end date and of the
profit or loss of the Group for the finandial year and otherwise comply with the Companies Act 2014 and the
European Union (Credit Institutions: Financial Statements) Regulations, 2015 and, in respect of the Consolidated
Financial Statements, Article 4 of the International Accounting Standards {‘1AS’) Regulation,

In preparing these Financial Statements, the Directors are required to:

+ selectsuitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

¢ make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

¢ prepare the Financial Statements an the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Group will continuein business; and

* state whether the Finandal Statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable acoounting
standards, identifythose standards and note the effect andthe reasons for any material departure from those
standards.

The Directors areresponsible for ensuring that the Group keeps, or causes to be kept, adequate accounting records
which correctly explain and record the transactions of the Group, enable at any time the assets, liabilities, financial
positionand profit or 1.0ss of the Group to be determined with reasonable accuracy, enable themto ensurethat the
Financial Statements and Directors’ Report comply with the Companies Act 2014 and enable the Financial
Statements to be audited. They arealso responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Statement of relevant audit information
In the case of each of the Directors at the time the report is approved:
* sofarastheDirectors are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Group’s statutory auditors
areunaware; and
¢ the Directors have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a directorinorderto make thems elves
awareof anyrel evant audit information and to establish that the Group's statutory auditors are aware of that
information.

Directors’ compliance statement pursuant to Section 225 of the Companies Act 2014
The Directors acknowledge that they are responsible with securing the Group’s compliance with its relevant
obligations; and, state as follows:

12



Directors’ Report (continued)

For the year covered by this report, itis confirmed thatthe Group’s arrangements or structures whichsupport the
achievement of the objectives of the Group’s Compliance Policy Statement have been reviewed and it has been
affirmed that the Group maintains a register of all relevant policies, framework documents, terms of reference,
guidelines and processes which aredesigned to secure material compliance with, and support the conclusion that,
the Group is in compliance with all its relevant obligations {collectively the “Applicable Compliance Policies”). The
Directors have been issued with a report setting out these Applicable Compliance Policies and the refevant
obligations to which they apply. The Grouphas utilised this review andreport as the means of ascertaining that the
appropriate arrangements andstructures are present to ensure compliance withthe Group’s relevant obligations.

Modern slavery statement _
The Modern Slavery Statement by the Groupis made pursuantto Section 54, Part 6 of the ModernSlavery Act 2015
andsets outthe stepsthatthe Group is taking to ensure that slaveryand humantraffickingis nottaking placein the
Group’s supplychains orin anypart ofthe business. The Group complies withallrelevant Employmentlaws including
laws relating to working conditions of staff and has relevant policies and procedures in place to ensure the
requirements are followed.

This statement was approved by the Board of Directors (‘the Board’)on 17 December 2020 and can be found at
www.elavon.co.uk/about-elavon/legal .htm!.

Corporate Social Responsibility Report

The Group recognises and embraces its responsibilities as an important contributor to the economies in which it
operates, with a genuine desire to contributeina wider senseto society i nduding through the initiatives described
in the Corporate Sodial Responsibility Report. This report has been approved by the Boardon 24" June 2020 and can
be found at www.elavon.ie.

Dividend
No dividend is proposed for the year {2019: nil). The Directors do not recommend any transfer to reserves,

Branches outside the State

The Bank has branches, withinthe meaning of EU Council Directive 89/666/EEC, in the United Ki ngdom, Germany,
Poland, Norway, Spain and Luxembourg.

Events after the reporting period
Thereareno subsequent events after thereporting date that require disclesure in the Financial Statements.

Political donations ‘ _
No political donations, which require disclosurein accordance with the Electoral Acts, 1997 to 2002 were made by -
the Group during the year.

Corporate governance

The Group is subject to the provisions of the Central Bank of ireland’s Corporate Governance Requirements for Credit
Institutions 2015. The Groupis notclassified as a “highimpact designated credit institution” for the purposes of the
Code and is therefore not subject to the additional requirements of Appendix 1 of the Code.

Subsidiary companies
Details of the Group’s subsidiaries are set outin Note 30 to the Consdclidated Financial Statements in accordance
with the Companies Act 2014,

Board Audit Committee

The Board Audit Committee has been delegated authority to provide assistance to the Board in fulfilling its
responsibility to the s hareholders with respect to its oversight of the financial reportingprocess and the quality and
Integrity of the Group’s financial s tatements; the Group’s internal controls and compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; the statutoryaudit of the annual and consolidated accounts; the independence of the Group’s auditor,
and the provision of additional services to the Group; and the effectiveness of the Group's Internal Audit function.
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Directors’ Report {continued)

Accounting records

The measures taken by the Directors to ensure compliance with the Group'’s obligation to keep proper accounting
records, as outlined in Section 281-285 of the Companies Act 2014, are the use of appropriate systems and
procedures andthe employment of competent persons whoreport to the Chief Financial Officer and ensure that the
requirements of the legislation are complied with. The accounting records are kept at 1% Floor, Building 8,
Cherrywood Business Park, Loughlinstown, D18 W319,

Auditors

Mazars, Chartered Accountants were appointed statutory auditor on 08 December 2016. They have beenre-
appointed annually since that date and will continue in office inaccordance with Section 383 (2)of the Companies
Act 2014.

Approved and authorised for issue on 23 March 2021,

\ - .
EéfG%ﬁED by Declan Lynch E-SIGNED by Craig Gifford

on 2021-03-23 20:57:34 GMT on 2'0,21;03-23 19:41:68 GMT
Declan Lynch Craig Gifford

/‘___\W
E-SIGNED by Stephen Groarke
on 2021503-23 18:19:20 GMT

Stephen Groarke
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Elavon Financial Services DAC

Consolidated Statement of Income for the year ended 31 December

in thousands of Euro Note 2620 2019
Fee, commission and leasing income 3 249,951 343,616
Interestincome 4 6,203 20,322
Interestexpense 4 (2,409) {8,533)
Net interestincome 3,799 11,789
Other operatingihcome 5 10,855 16,151
Shareinioss of associate 11 (127) (391}
Gain onsaleof associate 11 1,131 -
Total operatingincome 265,604 371,165
Other operating expense 7 (340,539) (326,638)
Foreign exchangeloss 7 {746) (1,861)
Total other operating expense {341,285} {328,499}
(Loss)/ profitfor theyear before taxation {75,681} 42,666
Income tax credit/{charge) 8 44,709 {10,408)
(Loss)/profitfor theyear {30,972} 32,258
15




Elavon Financial Services DAC
| Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31 December

In thousands of Euro Note 2020 2019
{Loss)/profit for theyear (30,972) 32,258
Other comprehensive (loss}/profit that may be redlassified to the Consolidated Statement of Income

Foreign currencytranslationrecognised directlyin equity (21,874) 12,543
Tax effect . - -
Foreign currency translation recognised directly in equity, netof tax {21,874) 12,543
Other comprehensive loss that will not be reclassifiedto the Consolidated Statement of iIncome
Re-measurement of defined henefit plans 23 (1,039) {1,608)
Taxeffect ‘ 130 200
Re-measurement of defined benefit plans, net of tax . {909) (1,306)
Other comprehensive {loss)/income, netof tax (22,783} 11,137
Total oomﬁrehensive {loss)/ iﬁmme, net oftai (53,755} 43,395
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Elavon Financial Services DAC
| Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December

In thousands of Euro . Note 2020 2019
Assets

Balances at central banks 9 8,886,266 7,580,668
Duefrombanks 9 403,260 329,165
Receivables fromissuingbanks 13 185,314 482,651
Investment services receivables i4 11,408 13,022
Merchantreceivables 12 111,770 77,238
Currenttax asset 1,193 2,758
Other assets 18 60,191 48,530
Intangible assets —goodwill 15 331,535 136,209
Intangible assets —other 16 69,022 23,857
Property, plant andequipment 17 65,722 58,752
Leaseholdasset 10 37,621 18,202
Investmentin assodate 11 - 1,406
Deferred tax asset 8 11,917 3,675
Total assets 10,175,219 8,776,133
Liabilities

Overdrafts 9 314 723
Corporatetrust deposits 19 8,295,994 6,888,168
Merchant payables 20 417,958 638,097
Currenttax liability 918 42,143
Other liabifities 21 87877 75,256
Leasehold liability 10 41,027 18,492
Provisions 28 3,194 1,915
Deferred tax liability 8 11,977 5,624
Total liabilities 8,859,259 7,670,418
Equity

Sharecapital 24 6,400 6,400
Capital contribution 25 853,389 589,389
Retained earnings 520,026 550,998
Fareign currencytransiationreserve {55,679} (33,805)
Pensionre-measurement reserve (8,176) (7,267}
Totatequity 1,315,960 1,105,715
Total liabilities and equity 10,175,219 8,776,133

Approved for issue, by the Board, on 23 March 2021,

E-SIGNED by Declan Lynch E-SIGNED by Craig Gifford
on 2021203-23 20:57:39 GMT on 2Q21 103-23 19:42:06 GMT
Dedan Lynch Craig Gifford

E-SIGNED by Stephen Groarke
on 202103-23 18:19:22 GMT

Stephen Groarke
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Elavon Financial Services DAC

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 December

Foreign Pension
Inthousands of Euro Share capital Capital Retained currency re-measurement Total Equity
contribution earnings transiation
] reserve reserve
Balance as at 1 January 2019 6,400 589,389 518,740 (46,348} {5,861) 1,062,320
‘Profitfor theyear - - 32,258 - - 32,258
Other comprehensive income/{loss), net of tax - - - 12,543 {1,406) 11,137
Total comprehensiveincome/(loss), netof tax - - 32,258 12,543 {1,406) 43,395
Managementre-charge for share-based payment (Note 25) - {733} - - - {733)
Capital contribution (Note 25} - ‘733 - - - 733
{ Balance as at 31 December 2019 6,400 589,389 550,998 (33,805) (7,267) 1,105,735 |
} Balance as at 1 January 2020 6,400 589,389 550,998 (33,805) {7,267) 1,105,715 §
Loss for theyear - - (30,972} - - (30,972)
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax - - - (21,874) (209} (22,783)
Total comprehensiveloss, net of tax - - {30,972) (21,874) {909) (53,755)
Management re-charge for share-based payment (Note 25) - {830} - - - {830)
Capital contribution (Note 25) - 264,830 - - - 264,830
| Balance as at 31 December 2020 6,400 853,389 520,026 (55,679) {8,176) 1,315,960 |




Elavon Financial Services DAC

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the yearended 31 December

in thousands of Euro Note 2020 2019
Cash flows from operating activities
{Loss)/profitbeforetax (75,681) 42,666
Adjustments ta reconcile {loss)/profit before tax to netcash
Depreciation, amortisationandimpairment losses 7 39,567 27,558
Losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment 7 896 508
Sharein loss of associate 11 127 391
{Profit)/loss on sale of associate {1,131) -
Interestincome {6,721) {20,078)
Interest expense 2,445 8,023
Dividend income on available for sale financial assets - -
Working capital adjustments
Net changein prepayments and other receivables 18 (9,417) 39,805
Net change in Visa Europe deferred considerationreceivables 18 - 17,171
Net changein accruals and sundry creditors 21 (234) 4,691
Net changeinreceivables fromissuing banks 13 297,337 3,137
Net changeinmerchantreceivables 12 (34,532) 2,704
Net changein investment services receivables 14 1,614 (322)
Net changein other assets 1,073 {7,037}
Net changeindueto other banks - 104
Net changein merchant payables 20 {220,139) 18,847
Net changein corporate trust deposits 19 1,407,826 1,258,327
Net changein other liabilities (622) (8,628)
Interest paid on short term borrowings 4 {36) {219)
Interest paid on corporate trust depaosits (1,646} {7,803)
Taxation refunded/{paid) 9,836 {9,221}
Net cash provided/{used} in operating activities 1,410,562 1,370,724
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cashacquired {263,958} -
Interestreceived on investments and cash balances 5,957 20,078
Net decreaseininvestments with affiliates - 104,803
Disposal of associate 11 2,410 -
Additions to goodwill - {(5,338)
Additions to property, plantand equipment 17 (33,198) {34,745)
Disposal of property, plantand equipment 1,788 4,866
Additions to intangible assets {1,166) {14,728)
Disposal of intangible fixed assets 16 (41) -
Net decreaseinother reserves 6,857 -
Net cash provided by investingactivities (281,351) 74,936
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Elavon FinancialServices DAC

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December - continued

Inthousands of Euro Note 2020 2019
Cash flows from financing activities

Payments for Parent Company re-charges for share-based payments 25 {830} (733)
Capital contribution 264,952 -
Net changein leaseliabilities 10 3,116 (5,899)
Net cash used in financing activities 267,238 (6,632)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents {16,347) 9,248
Net increasef{decrease)in cash and cash equivalents 1,380,102 1,448,276
Cash and cash equivalents atthe beginning of theyear 9 7,909,110 6,460,834
Cash and cash equivalents at theend of the year 9 9,289,212 7,909,110
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Elavon Financial Services DAC
Company Statement of Income for the year ended 31 December

In thousands of Euro Note - 2020 2019
Fee, commission and leasingincome A 219,591 339,209
Interestincome 4 6,203 20,322
Interest expense 4 {2,409) (8,533}
Netinterestincome ' 3,794 11,789
Other aperatingincome " B 10,631 18,075
Shareinloss of associate 11 {127) (391}
Gain onsale of associate 11 1,131 -
Total operating income 235,020 368,682
Other operating expense C (317,944) (322,873)
Foreign exchangeloss C {651) (1,849)
Total other operating expense {318,595) (324,722)
(Loss)/profitfor the year before taxation (83,575) 43,960
Incometax credit/{charge) ' D 46,101 (10,407)
(Loss)/profitfor theyear (37,474) 33,553

Numedc note references referto the Notes to the Consolidated Financlal Statements. Letter note references refer to the Notes to the Company

Finandal Statements.
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Elavon Financial Services DAC
Company Statement of Other Comprehensive Income forthe year ended 31 December

In thousandsof Euro . Note 2020 2019
{Loss)/profitfor theyear (37,474) 33,553
Other comprehensive {loss)/income that may be reclassified to the Company Statement of Income

Foreign currencytransiationrecognised directlyin equity (19,624) 12,248
Tax effect - -
Foreign currency transiationrecognised directly in equity, netof tax {19,624) 12,248
Other comprehensive loss that will not be redassifiedto the Company Statement of Income

Re-measurement of defined benefit plans 23 {1,039) (1,606)
Tax effect 130 200
Re-measurement of defined benefit plans, net of tax (909) (1,306}
Other comprehensive (loss)/income, netoftax {20,533) 10,842
Total comprehensive {loss)/income, netoftax {58,007) 44,395

Numeric note references réfer to the Notes to the Consolidoted ananda]' Stotements.
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Elavon Financial Services DAC
Company Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December

In thousands of Euro Note 2020 2019
Assets

Cash and balances atcentral banks E 8,886,266 7,580,668
Duefrombanks E 376,285 329,165
Investrnentin associate 11 - 1,406
Investmentin subsidiary i 30 94,511 4,620
Merchant receivables F 111,964 77,238
Receivables fromissuingbanks 13 185,314 482,651
tnvestmentservices receivables 14 11,408 13,022
Intangible assets - goodwill G 252,969 136,209
Intangible assets - other H 68,944 23,857
Property, planmt andequipment | 62,900 58,752
Currenttax asset 662 2,732
Leaseholdasset J 37,081 18,202
Deferred tax asset D 11,215 3,675
QOther assets K - 64,316 48,671
Total assets 10,163,835 8,780,868
Liabilities

QOverdrafts 9 314 723
Corporate trust deposits 19 8,295,994 6,888,168
Merchant payables 20 417,958 638,097
Current tax liability 1,239 42,144
Other liabifities L 81,076 79,933
Leaseholdliability J 40,582 18,492
Provisions 28 3,194 1,915
Deferred tax liability D 11,713 5,624
Totalliabilities 8,852,070 7,675,096
Equity

Sharecapital 24 6,400 6,400
Capital comtribution 25 853,389 589,389
Retained earnings 513,579 551,053
Foreign currencytranslationreserve (53,427) (33,803)
Pensionre-measurement reserve (8,176) {7,267)
Total equity 1,311,765 1,105,772
Total liabilities and equity 10,163,835 8,780,868

Numeric note references refer to the Notes to the Consolidated Finanda! Statements. Letter note references refer to the Notes to the Company
Financial Statements.

Approved for issue, by the Board, on 23 March 2021.

£ o _
E-SIGNED by Declan Lynch E-SIGNED by Craig Gifford
on 2021:03-23 20:57:45 GMT on ﬁ-Q21503-23 19:42:27 GMT
DedanLynch Craig Gifford

E-SI_G&I;'I_I;',D by Stephen Groarke
on 2021-03-23 18:19:25 GMT

Stephen Groarke
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Elavon Financial Services DAC

Company Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 December

Share Capital Retained Foreign curren Pension
In thousands of Euro capital contrlbtilon earnings translatgion re ser\z re-meast:ree::: Total Equity
 Balance as at 1January 2019 6,400___ 589389 517,500 {46,051) (5861)_ 1061377
Profitfor theyear - - 33,553 - - 33,553
Other comprehensive i ncome/{loss), netof tax - - - 12,248 (1,406) 10,842
Total comprehensive income/(loss}, net of tax - - 33,553 12,248 {1,406} 44,395
Management re-charge for share-based payment (Note 25} - {733) - - - {733)
Capital contribution (Note 25} - 733 - - - 733
[ Balance as at 31 December 2619 6,400 589,389 551,053 (33,803) (7,267)____ 1,105,772 ]
{ Balance as at 1January 2020 6,400 589,389 551,053 {33,803) {7.267) 1,105,772 ]
Loss fortheyear - - (37,474) - - (37,474)
Other comprehensive|oss, net oftax - - - {19,624) {909) {23,533)
Total comprehensive loss, net of tax - - (37,474) (19,624) {909) (58,007)
Management re-charge for share-based payment (Note 25) - (830) - - - (830)
Capital contribution (Note 25) - 264,830 - - - 264,830
| Balance as at 31 December 2020 6,400 853,389 513,579 {53,427) (8,176) 1,311,765 1
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Elavon Financial Services DAC

Company Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December

In thousands of Euro Note 2020 2019
Cash flows from operating activities
{Loss)/profitbeforetax (83,575) 43,960
Adjustments to reconcile {loss)/profit beforetax to netcash
Depreciation, amertisationandimpairment losses C 38,732 27,558
Losses on disposal of property, plantand equipment 7 586 508
Sharein loss of assaciate 11 127 391
(Profit)/loss on sake of associate 11 (1,131) -
Interestincome {6,721) {20,078)
Interestexpense 2,444 8,023
Working capital adjustments
Net changein prepayments and other receivables K {1,809) 39,970
Increasein Visa Europe deferred considerationreceivable - 17,171
Net changeinaccruals and sundry creditors L {4,235} 4,644
Net changein receivables fromissuing banks 13 297,337 3,137
‘Net changeinmerchantreceivables {34,726) 2,704
Net changein investment services receivables 14 1,614 (3,186}
Net changeinother assets {19,306} (5,937)
Net changeindue to other banks - 104
Net change in merchant payables 20 {220,139) 18,847
‘Net changein corporate trust deposits 19 1,407,826 1,258,327
Net changein other liabilities 6,581 {7,883)
Interest paid on short term borrowings q (36) (219)
Interestpaid on corporate trust deposits (1,646} {7,806}
Taxation refunded/{paid} 11,286 {9,216)
Net cash provided/{used) in operating activities 1,393,209 1,371,019
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received on investments and cash balances 5,958 20,078
Net decreaseininvestments with affiliates - 104,803
Disposal of associate 11 2,410 -
Additions to goodwill G (119,887) (5,338)
Additions to property, plant and equipment 17 (29,414) {34,745}
Disposal of property, plantand equipment 1,967 4,866
Additions to intangible fixed assets {63,466) {14,728)
Disposal of intangible fixed assets (41) -
Increase ininvestmentinsubsidiary {89,892) -
Net cash provided by investingactivities {292,365) 74,936
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Elavon Financial Services DAC
Company Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December — continued

in thousands of Euro Note 2020 2019
Cash flows from financing activities

Payments for parent company re-charges for share-based payments 25 {830} {733)
Capital contribution 264,000 -
Net change leaseliabilities ‘ 10 3,211 (5,899)
Net cash used in financing activities 266,381 (6,632}
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (14,098) . 8,953
Net increase/(decrease)in cash and cash equivalents 1,353,127 1,448,276
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of theyear 9 7,909,110 6,460,834
Cash and cash equivalentsat the end of the year 9 9,262,237 7,909,110

Numeric note references refer to the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Letter note references refer to
the Notes to the Company Financial Statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Basis of Preparation

Reporting entity
Elavon Financial Services DAC is a company incorporated and domidiled in Ireland. The address of the Bank's
registered office is Building 8, Cherrywood Business Park, Loughlinstown, D18 W319.

The Consoclidated Financial Statements include the accounts of Elaven Financial Services DAC, its branches and its
subsidiary undertakings and indude all activity through to the end of the finandial year. The Company Financial
Statements include the accounts of Elaven Financial Services DAC and its branches.

The Bank commenced operations on 8 December 2006. Its ultimate parent undertaking is U.S. Bancorp, a company
incorporated in Delaware, U.5.A. The Bank and its subsidiaries are the European platform for U.S. Bancorp’s card
acquiring and processing operations while also supporting additional payment service business lines. The Group has
been primarily involved in merchant acquiring operations. Since 2010, when the Group acquired a book of business
fromBankof America, the Group has been the European platform for U.S. Bancorp’s corporate trust business.

Statement of compliance

The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented i n accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU and applicable
as at 31 December 2020, The accounting policies have been consistently applied by Group entities. The Consolidated
Financial Statements aiso comply with the requirements of lrish Statute comprising the Companies Acts 2014 and
theS.1. No. 266 of 2015 (European Union{Credit Institutions: Financial Statements) Regulations 2015}, and, inrespect
of the Consalidated Financial Statements, Article 4 of the 1AS Regulation.

Basis of measurement
The Consclidated Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for pension plans and
derivative financial instruments which have been measured at fair value.

Functional and presentation currency

The Consolidated Financial Statements ofthe Groupare presented in Euro {also referred to as ‘EUR’ and '€') rounded
to the nearest thousand (‘000}. The Euro is the functional currency of the Bank. For other Group entities {ie.
branches andsubsidiaries), the functional currency is the local currency in the country in which they operate,

Use of estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Group’s Consolidated Financial Statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
accompanying disdosures, and the disdosure of contingent |iabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates couldresultin outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities
affected in future periods.

The estimates and judgements that have had the most significant effect on theamounts recognised in the Group’s
financial statements are set out below.

Revenue Recognition

The recognition and presentation of revenue requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions. The Groupdetermines accountingtreatment by methods thatindude, but are notlimitedto, reviewing
contractterms, roles andobligations of partiesto a contract, and the transaction price. Judgement maybe required
in instances where guidance is principles based, such as principal versus agent guidance which d etermines gross
versus net revenue financial statement presentation. See Note 2 for further discussion of net revenue by primary
business activities. Judgement is required when determining the useful life rel ated to one-time acceptance fees as
further described in Note 2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
1 Basis of Preparation {continued}

Provisions

The recognition and measurement of provisions, incertaininstances, mayinvolve a highdegree of uncertainty, and
thereby, considerable time is expended on research in establishing the facts, scenario testing assessing the
probability of the outflow of resources and estimating the amount of anyloss. This process will, of its nature, require
significant management judgement and will require revisions to earlier judgements and estimates as matters
progress towards conclusion. Details of the Group's provisions are shownin Note 8 and Note 28 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets impairment

Goodwillis tested annually forimpairment, based on value in use calculations that use a cash flow model. Forother
intangible assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any
indi cation of impairment. If such an indication exists, the Group estimates the assets or cash generating units (‘CGU}
recoverahle amount. The cash flows are derived from assumptions based on historical volumes, volume growth
rates, revenue marginrates anda discount rate. This test requires significant management judgements as a result of
the assumptions used in this test. Additional details on goodwill impairment can be found in Note 15 to the
Consolidated Finandal Statements. Additional details on intangble assets impairment can be found in Note 16 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Other disclosures where management have utilised judgement/estimation and assumptions:
e [FRS9 ~Financial Instruments {Note 2)

o |FRS 3 —Business combinations (Note 2}

s Deferred tax {Note 8)

e |FRS 16 (Note 10}

¢ Defined benefit obligations (Note 23)
Basis of consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity where the Group has the power, exposure or rights to variable returns and the ability to

exercisecontrol over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from thedate on which contral is tra nsferred to the
Group until the date that control ceases. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the related

assets, liabilities and non-controlling i nterest and ather components of equity whileanygainor lossis recognised in
profitorloss. Any investment retainedis recognised at fairvalue, Subsidiaries have the same reporting period as the
Group and the sameaccounting policies. Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains arising fromintra-
group transactions are eliminated upon consolidation.

. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies that Elavon Financial Services DAC and its subsidiaryundertakings applied inthe
preparationof the Group Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 Decemher 2020 areset out below.
These accounting policies have been applied consistently to all years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Changes in accounting policy and disdosures
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year.

Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for usingthe acquisition method. The cost of anacquisition is measuredas the
aggregate of the consideration transferred at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred and included in administrative expenses.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractuzl terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as atthe acquisition date. Thisincludes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the
acquiree as appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Polidies {continued)

When the initial accounting for a business combination is determined provisionally, any adjustments to the
provisional values allocated to the consideration, identifiable assets or [1abilities (and contingent liabilities, if
relevant) are made within the measurement period, a periodofno morethan oneyearfromtheacquisition date.

Any contingent considerationto be transferred by the acquirer willbe recognised at fairvalue atthe acquisition date
Subsequent changes to thefair value of the contingent consideration liability will be recognised in the Consolidated
Statement of Income. The determination of thefair valueis based on discounted cash flows. Thekey assumptions
take into consideration the probability of meeting each performance target and the discount factor.

On 11 March 2020the Group acquired 100% of the stock of Elavon Digital Europe Limited, { ‘Opayo’, formerlySage
Pay Europelimited), a wetl-known andestablished payments gateway business in the United Kingdom and Irdand.
The Group expects that the acquisition will help its business customers grow as the global economybecomes more
focused on digital, and as businesses look to streamline their operations with software that indudes payments
capabilities. Details of the business combination are as follows:

Inthousands of EUR Total
AmountSettledinCash 273,702
Identifiable net assets acquired, including adjustments to provisional fair values:

Share capital 952
Intangible assets - Merchant Contracts 51,615
Intangible assats - Software Platform 12,434
Cash 9,743
Other assets 10,263
Other liabilities (15,071}
Net identifiable assets and Liabilities 69,936

{ Goodwill 203,766 |

The considerationpaid for Opayowasin GBP and forthe purposes of thetable above has been translated toits EUR
equivalent at 11 March 2020 using the prevailing exchange rate.

The acquisitionwassettledin cash inGBP being the equivalent of EUR 273,702 thousand. Acquisition -related costs
of EUR 3,337 thousand have been recognised as an expensein the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
as part of other expenses. Thefairvalue of the netassets as at the acquisition date was EUR 69,936 thousand.

Goodwill recognised on the acquisition relates to the expected growth, cost synergies and the value of the Opayo
workforce which cannot be separately recognised as an intangible asset. This goodwitl has been allocated to the
Group’s Goodwill and is not deductible for tax purposes.

Opayo contributed EUR 26,674 thousand to the Group's revenue and EUR 3,782 thousand to its profit (before
taxation) from the acquisition date to 31 December 2020. These amounts have been determined by applying the
Group’s accounting policies.

If Opayo had been acquired on 1 January 2020, it would have contributed EUR 33,170 thousand to the Group's
revenue and EUR 4,704 thousand to its profit (before taxation) from the year ended 31 December 2020.

tnvestment in associates

An assodiate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but does not represent control or joint
control over those policies.
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Notes to the Consclidated Financial Statements
2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued}

The considerations made in determining significant influence or joint control are similar to those necessary to
determine control over subsidiaries. The Group’s investment in its associate are accounted for using the equity
method.

Under the equity method, the investment is initially recognised at cost. The carrying amount of the investment is
adjusted to recognise changes inthe Group's share of net assets of the associate since the acquisition date. Goodwill
relating to the associate is included inthe camrying amount of the investment and is neither amortised nar individually
tested for impairment.

The Consolidated Statement of Income reflects the Group’s share of the results or operations of the associate. Any
changein Other Comprehensive Income (‘OCI') of those investees is presented as part of the Group’s 0. In addition,
when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate, the Group recognises its share of
any changes, when applicable, in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity. Unrealised gains and losses
resultingfrom the transactions between the Group and the associateare eliminated to theextent of the interestin
the associate.

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of an associate is shown on the face of the Censolidated
Statement of Income outside operating profitand represents profit or loss after tax and non-contralling interests in
the subsidiaries of the associate.

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the associate are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group.
When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting pelicies in line with those of the Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise animpairment
loss on its investment in its associate. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there is objective
evidence thattheinvestmentinthe assodateisimpaired. If thereis suchevidence, the Group calculates the amount
of the impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value and
then recognises the loss within ‘Share of profit/loss of assaciate’ in the Consolidated Statement of Income.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group measures and recognises any retained investment
atits fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of significant influence or
joint control and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in the
Consolidated Statement of Income.

Foreign currency translation

Group companies

As at the reporting date, assets and liabilities of subsidiaries and branches denominated in a foreign currency are
translated into the Group's presentation currency, (EUR}, at the exchange rate on the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position. Exchange differences arising on translation are recorded directly to OCl. On disposal of a
subsidiary, deferred cumulative amounts are recognised in realised exchange gain or loss in the Consolidated
Statement of Income. The Consolidated Statement of income is translated to the Group’s presentation currency at
the respective functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Transactions and balances

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in foregn
currencies are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair valueis determined.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency spot
rate of exchange ruling at the reportingdate. Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Foreign exchange gains and | osses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the retranslation at
year end exchangerates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
Consolidated Statement of Income,

Interest income and expense

Interestincome and expense are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of I ncome for all interest bearing financial
instruments usingthe effectiveinterest rate method. The effective interest rate method is the interest rateon a loan
or financial product restated from the nominal interest rate as an interest rate with annual compound i nterest
payableinarrears, Negative interest expenseis classified under bank processing fees in the currentand prior year.

Other operating income

Other operating i ncome consists primarily of income from services provided to affiliate companies, foreign exchange
gainson non-trading assets and liabilities andgains on changes inderivatives’ fair values. Other operating income
also includes income received on investments,

Leases
The Group recognises aleasehold asset anda corresponding leasehold liability with respectto all lease arrangements
in whichitis the lessee, except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets,

The leasehold liability is initially measured at the present value of the |ease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the | ease. If this mte cannot be readily determined,
the lessee uses its incremental borrowing rate.

The leasehold liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the
leasehold liability (using the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made.

The Group re-measures the leasehold liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related leasehold asset)
whenever:

s Theleasetermhaschanged ar thereisa significant event or change in circumstances resultingin a change
inthe assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case theleasehold liability i s re-measured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised dis countrate.

¢ The lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment under a
guaranteed residual value, in which cases the leasehold liability is re-measured by discounting the revised
lease payments using an unchanged discount rate {unless thelease payments changeis dueto a changein
a floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used).

s Aleasecontractis modified, and thelease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which
casetheleaseholdliability is re-measured based on the lease term of the modified | ease by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The leasehold assets comprise the initi al mea surement of the corresponding leasehold liability, lease payments made
at or before the commencement day, less any lease incentives received and any initial direct costs. They are
subsequently measured atcost less accurmulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Whenever the Group incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle andremove a | eased asset, restore the site on which
itis located or restore the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease, a
provision is recognised and measured under IAS 37. To the extent that the costs relate to a right-of-use asset, the
costs are included in the related leasehold asset.

Leaseholdassets are depreciated over the shorter period of the lease term and usefut life of the underlying assets.
If a lease transfers ownership of the underlyingasset or the cost of the leasehold asset reflects that the Group expects
to exercise a purchase option, the rel ated leasehold asset is depreciated over the useful life of the underlying assets,
The depreciation starts at the commencement date of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

The Group applies IAS 36 to determine whether a leasehold asset is impaired and accounts for any identified
impairment loss as described in the ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ policy.

Variable rents thatdo notdepend on anindex orrateare notincludedin the measurement of the | easehold liability
and the leasehold asset. The rel ated payments are recognised as an expensein the period in which the event or
conditionthattriggers those payments occurs and areincluded in ‘Other operating expense’ in profit or loss.

Assets leased to customers

Assets leased to customers, comprising point-of-sale terminals, are classified as operating |eases if the lease
agreements do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership. The leased assets and their
associated installation costs are included within property, plant and equipment on the Group’s Consalidated
Statement of Financial Position and depreciation is provided on the depreciable amount of these assetson a
systematic basis over their estimated useful lives. Lease income is recognised on a straightline basis over the period
of the lease.

Revenue Recognition

Inthe ordinary course of business, the Grouprecognises income derived from various revenue generating activities.
Certain revenues are generated from contracts where they are recognised when, or as, services or products are
transferred to customers for amounts the Group expects to be entitled. Revenue generating activities related to
finandal instruments are also recognised, including | eases, foreign currency translations and equity i nvestments.
Revenue is generated from the following:

Elavon Merchant Services

EMS fee, commission and leasing income consists principally of merchant discount and other transaction and account
management fees charged to merchants for providing the performance abligation of el ectronic processing of card
association network transactions and revenue generated through the provision of gateway services. Revenue is
recognised at the time the merchant processing services are performed. The EMS merchant discount transaction
price {excluding gateway revenue) is presented net of interchange paid to the card-issuingbank and card association
assessments, which are charges collected on behalf of the cardissuers and payment networks. The EMS merchant
discount transaction price is also presented net of revenue sharing amounts. The Group may enter into revenue
sharing agreements with partners who refer merchants or in connecticn with purchases of merchant contracts from
sellers. The revenuesharing amounts are determined primarily on sales volume processed or revenue generated for
a particular group of merchants. EMS revenue al so i ndudes revenues related to point-of-sake equi pment recorded
as sales when the equipment is shipped or as earned for equipment rentals. Costs related to equipment sales and
rentals are presented separately in ‘Other operating expenses’.

Far other EMS revenue, where the performance obligation is the grant of a right to continuously access a doud
offering (gateway services)for a certainterm, revenueis recognised based on time elapsed and thus rateably over
the term.

Global Corporate Trust Services

Trust and investment management fees are recognised over the period in which services are performed and the
transactionpriceis based ona percentage of the fairvalue of the assets under management or administration, fixed
based on account type, or transaction-hased fees. Trust contracts may include acceptance fees whichareone-ime
charges related to the establishment of the trust agreement. The performance obligation related to these fees is
over time as the trust is utiized by the customer. The Groupdefers andamortizes the fees over the 3 -year estimated
life of trust relationships. The Group’s performance obligation consists of providing services to clients which include
trustee, transfer agent, custodian, fiscal agent, and escrow.

Depositary Services

Depositary service fees, recognises fees over the period inwhich the performance obligation of providing depositary
services is performed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued}

Corporate Payment Systems

CPS generates itsincome from Corporate Card Issuance. Corporate Cardlssuance’s performance obligationis to act
as theissuing bank that offers bank cards to customers. The transaction price is the fee income generated by charging
interchange fees for the authorization and settlement of card transactions. The Group records corporate payment
products revenueas services are provided. Corporate payment products transaction priceis presented net of card
association assessments and rebates to customers,

Staff costs

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term empl oyee benefits, such as wages and salaries, social security costs and other benefits are accounted for
onh an accrual basis aver the period during whichemployees have provided services. Bonuses are recognised to the
extent that the Group has a legal or constructive obligation to its employees that can be measured reliably.

Long-term incentive benefit

The Group awards long-termincentive benefits to some empl oyees to encourage them to stay with the Group and
meet the Group's long-term goals. This award is paidin cash and payments vests over three years. The cost s
recognised in Staff Costs expense (Note 7).

U.S. Bancorp also grants certain EU Identified employees shares in U.5. Bancorp as a retention incentive, whereby
employees render services as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled transactions}. The number of
shares awarded is dependent on the annual awardto the employee andthe market price of the shares onthe award
date. The vesting period of the shares is three years. Ownership is transferabte to employees after a three-year
period if they remain in employment within the Group.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value atthe date when the grantis made usingan
appropriate valuation model. That costis recognised in Staff Costs expense (Note 7}, together with a corresponding
increase in equity through Capital Contribution, over the period in which the service and, where applicable, the
performanceconditions are fulfilled {the vesting period). U.S. Bancorp subsequently recharges the cost to the Group.

The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settl ed transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date
reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The expense or credit in the Consolidated Statement of Income for a period
represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimatelyvest. Market performance conditions are refl ected withinthe
grantdatefairvalue. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without anassociated service requirement, are
considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and lead
to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

Pensions

The Group provides employees with post-retirement benefits mainly in the form of pensions, including both defined
contributionand defined benefit pension plans. The cost of the Group's defined contribution plansis charged to the
Consolidated Statementof Income in the accounting period in which itisincurred. Any contributions unpaid at the
end of the reporting period arerecorded as a liability. The Group has no further obligation under these plans once
these contributions have been paid. For defined benefit pensionplans, the cost of providingbenefits is determined
using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each reporting
period.

Defined benefit costs are splitinto three categories:
e Current service cost, past service cost, gains and losses on curtailments and settlements;
®* Netinterest expense or income; and
®* Re-measurement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The Group presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in the line item “Pension Costs — defined
benefit plans” within Other operating expenses in the Consalidated Statement of Income. Curtailment gainsor losses
are accounted for as past service costs. Re-measurementis recorded in OCI.

Re-measurement comprising of actuarial gains and losses, are recognised immediately in the Consalidated
Statement of Financial Position witha gain/lossto OCl inthe periodinwhichthey occur. Re-measurements are nat
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods. Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period of
planamendment. Netinterestis cakulated by applying the discount rateto the net defined benefit liability orasset

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the Cansdlidated Statement of Finandal Position represents the
actual deficitor surplus inthe Group’s defined benefit plans. Any s urplus resulting from this caleulation is limited to
the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future
contributions to the plans.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Grouphas a present obligation{legal or constructive) as a result of past events,
anditis probablethatan outflow of resources will e required to settlethe obligation, anda reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions currently held by the Groupindude chargeback provisions, asset
retirement obligations and corporate card provisions. Moreinformation on these provisions canbe found in Note 8
and Note 28 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will be confirmed only by uncertain future events
giving rise to present obligations where the transfer of economic benefitis uncertainorcannot be reliably measured.
They are not recognised but are disclosed in the Notes to the Consolidated Finandal Statements unless they are
considered to be remote.

Taxation

Income tax

Currentincome taxrelating to items recognised directly in equityis recognised in equity and notinthe Consolidated
Statement of Income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect o
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where
apprapriate.

Income tax assets and liabilities forthe current period aremeasured atthe amount expected to be recovered from
or paidto the taxationauthorities. The tax rates andtaxlaws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted
or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Group operates and generates taxable
income. Deferred taxis provided usingtheliability method ontemporarydifferences at the reporting date between
the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

*  Wherethe deferred tax|iability arises fromtheinitial recognition of goodwill or of an assetor liability ina
transaction thatis not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profitor loss; and

= {n respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interestsin jointventures, where thetiming of the reversal of the temporary differences can be contralled
and itis probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused taxcredits and
unused tax losses, to the extent thatit is probable thattaxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused taxcredits and unused taxlosses can be utilised, except:

= Where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of anassetor liability ina transactionthatis not a business combination and, atthe time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

* Inrespect of deductibletemporary differences assodated withinvestmentsinsubsidiaries, associates and
interestsinjointventures, deferred taxassets arerecognised onlyto the extent thatitis probable that the
temporary differences will reversein the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carryingamount of deferred taxassets is reviewed at eachreporting date and reducedto the extent thatitis no
tonger probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all, or pant, of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets arereassessed ateach reportingdate andare recognised to the extentthatithas
become probable that future taxable profits will aliow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities aremeasured atthe tax rates that are expected to apply inthe year when the assetisrealised or the
lizbility is settled, based ontaxrates (and tax|aws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred taxliabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to net current tax assets
and current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate recognition at
that date, would be recognised subsequentlyif new information about facts and circumstances changed. The
adjustment would either be treated as a reduction to goodwill{as long as it does not exceed goodwill) if incurred
during the measurement period or in profit or loss.

Uncertain tax

The Group recognises anuncertain tax provisionwhereitis considered that thereis uncertainty as to the taxation
treatment to be applied to transactions. This onlyapplies in limited i nstances whereitis considered thatthe nature
of the underlyingtaxation treatment is such that it may be subjectto an alternative i nterpretation by a tax authority.

Finandal assets
The Group holds two categories of financial assets:
* financial assets held at amortised cost; and
* financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (other assets).

Purchases andsales of financial assets arerecognised on trade date, being the date on whichthe Group commits to
purchaseorsell theassets. Transaction costs arising from financial assets thatareimmaterial from the perspective
of the Group aretreated as anexpense. While measurement criteria differ for each of these categories, thecarrying
amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value for all financial assets. (See Note 27)

Financigl assets held at amortised cost

Financial assets heldat amortised costinclude receivables from issuing banks, merchant receivables andinvestment
services receivables. The objective of the business model for financial assets heldat amortised costis to hold these
assetsto collect contractual cash flows. They arise whenthe Group provides money or services directiyto a customer
with nointentionof trading the financial asset. The Group applies a Solely Payments of Principal and Interest (‘SPPI)
test to determine if the cash flows from these assets are held solelyto collect contractual cash flows. Ifthe assets
aredeemed to meet the SPPI test they are classified as financdial assets measuredat amortised costand areinitially
recognised at fair value, including direct and incremental transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at
amortised cost less impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies [continued)

Interestis calculated using the effective interest rate method andcredited to the Consolidated Statement of Income.
Impaiment|osses and translationdifferences on monetary items are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of
Income. Financial assets held at amortised cost are de-recognised when the rights to receive cash fl ows from the
financial assets have expired orwhen the Group hastransferred substantially all therisks a nd rewards of ownership
and transfer qualifies for de-recognition in accordance with IFRS 9, Financial Instruments.

The Group places cashon deposit with U.S. Bank, on account with Central Banks and on fixed term deposits in the
open market.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss {other assets) {'FVTPL’}

The Group applies the SPPItest to financial assets. In addition, any asset that doesn’t meet either business modd of
held to collect or held to collect and sell are classified as FVTPL. Derivative financial assets are held at FVTPL and
included inother assets when the fair valueis positive andinduded in otherliabifities whenthe fair valueis negative.

Inthe ordinarycourse of business, the Group enters into foreignexchange forwards for hedging purposes to manage
foreign currency risks. The Graup does not enter into derivative transactions for speculative purposes. Further
information on the Group's financial risk management is presented in Note 26. All derivatives are recorded at fair
value on the date on which the contractis entered into. Subsequent changes in a derivative’s fair value are
recognised in other operating income or expense.

Fair valueis the amount at which afinancial instrument could be exchanged in a current transactionbetween willing
parties, other thanin a forced sale or liquidation. Fair value is the price that woutd be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
Management has used available market information in estimating the fair value of financial assets.

Impairment of financial assets

Itis Group policy to make provisions for impairment of finandal assets to reflect the losses inherentin those assats
at the end of the reporting period. The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period the impairment of
finandal assets measured at amortised costand at fair value through other comprehensive income {'FVOCI) cn an
expected credit loss (‘ECL’) basis. The measurement of ECLis based on a three-stage approach:

s Stage 1 -wherefinandal assets have not had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
allowance is calculated considering 12 months of credit losses. This Is inclusive of the portion of lifetime
expected credit losses that represent the expected credit losses that result from default events ona financial
instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date.

e Stage 2 -~ where financial assets have had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but
does not have objective evidence of impairment, allowance is calculated consideringthe lifetime ECL This
is calculated by applyingthe 1-year loss forecast for all financial assets held atamortised costaged 31 -90
days past due.

« Stage 3 - finandal assets that are significantly deteriorated and impaired. The ECL represents lifetime
expected losses. Financial assets held at amortised cost are deemed to be impaired when they have
defaulted. Defaultis considered when anabligoris 90+days pastdue forthe EMS, CPS and GCTS portfolios.

The Group monitors financial assets that are subject to impaiment requirements to assess whether there has been
a significantincrease i ncredit risk sinceinitial recognition on a regular basis. Belowisa list of some of the examples
of impairment indicators that are reviewed:

= Market value decline;

= Negative changes in technology, markets, economy or laws;

* Increases in market interest rates;

= QObsolescence or physical damage; and

= Economic performance is worse than expected.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

The measurement of the loss allowance is based on the present value of the applicable financial assets expected
cash flows using the financial asset’s effective interest rate. The final ECL allowance is coupled with a qualitative
overlaywhichis calculated monthly and reassessed on a quarterly basis. The qualitative overlay has been applied to
ensure expected loss impacts remain sufficient for the lifetime of expected losses from current receivables given the
increased risk of refunds and chargebacks. This management overlay was focussed on sectors mostimpacted by
COVID-19.

The general approach for recognising and measuring a loss allowance is the same for financial assets measured at
amortised costandthose assets thatare measured at FVOCI, However, unlike amortised cost, theloss allowanceon
assets at FVOCl are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income and do not reduce
the carrying amount of the financial assetin the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment | osses. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of
the Group’s CGU'’s that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or
liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a CGU and partof the operation within that unitis disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the operation when deter mining the
gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed inthese circumstances is measured based on the relative values of the
disposed operation and the portion of the CGU retained.

For more information, please see Note 15 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Other intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are capitalised at cost and those identified in a business acquisition are
capitalised at fair value as at the date of acquisition. Followinginitial recognition, intangible assets are carried at
amortised cost |ess any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses and these expenses are
included on the Consolidated Statement of Income within other operating expenses.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development {or from the development phase of aninternal
project} is recognised, if, and only if, all the following have been demonstrated:

» the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so thatit will be available for useor sale;

= theintention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

= theability to use or sell theintangible asset;

=  howtheintangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits;

= the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to

use or sell the intangible assets; and
= the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or infinite. There were no intangible assets with
infinite lives other than goodwillin 2020 or 2019. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised ona cash flow basis
{over USD 5,000 thousand; less than USD 5,000 thousand is straight line} and this expense is included on the
Consolidated Statement of Income within operating expense. Amartisation methods and periods relating to these
intangible assets are reviewed annually. Intangible assets with finite lives must be tested for impairment where
either there is an indicator of impairment or, in the case of material intangible assets, annually.
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Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and arerecognised in the Consolidated Statement of Income
when the asset is de-recognised.

Amortisation
The Group uses the following useful lives when calculating amortisation:

Class Useful life

Goodwill Infinite

Leasehold Property Life of lease, up to 20 years
Other 1-5years

Computer Software

- Software Purchased or Developed 3-10years

- Software Licences 1-5years

Contracts

- Merchant Contracts* 4 - 30 years

- Corporate Trust Contracts 8 years

*includes merchant contracts, merchant related non-compete controcts and referral agreements for merchant controcts

impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets

The Group’s impairment test for goodwill and intangible assets is based on valueinuse calculations thatusea cash
flow model. The cash flows are derived from assumptions based on histerical volumes, volume growth rates, revenue
margin rates and adiscount rate. The recoverable amountis mostsensitive to the average revenue margins applied
inthe cash flow model as well asthe expected future cash inflows and the volume/margin attritionrates applied for
extrapolation purposes. Thekey assumptions used to determine therecoverable amounts are further explainedin
Notes 15 and 16.

The recoverableamountof anassetisthehigherofits fairvalueless costto sell, andits valueinuse. Valuein useis
the presentvalue of the expected futurecashflows froma CGU. If therecoverableamountis lessthan the carrying
value, an impairment loss is charged to the Consolidated Statement of Income.

For other intangble assets excluding goodwill, an assessmentis made at eachreporting date as to whether thereis
any indication that previously recognised i mpairment losses may no longer existor may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the Group estimates the assets or CGU's recoverable amount,

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the asset’'s recoverable amount since the |ast impairment loss was recognised, If thatis the case, the
carrying amount of theassetisincreased to its recoverable amount. Impairment | osses relating to goodwill cannot
be reversed for subsequentincreases in its recoverable amount in future periods.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment, if
any. Additions and subsequent expenditures are capitalised only to the extent that they enhance the future
economic benefits éxpected to be derived from the asset.

Pfoperty, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight line basis over their estimated useful economic lives.
Depreciationis calculated based on the gross carrying amount, less the estimated residual value {in the majority of
cases deemed to be nil) at the end of the assets’ economic lives.

Terminals underoperating leases to customers, [ess accumulated depreciation, areincluded in property, plantand
equipment. Leasehold properties are amortised on a straight line basis over the lease term and amortisation is
included in depreciation expense.
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The Group uses the foflowing useful lives when calculating depreciation:

Class Useful life

Premises and leasehold improvements

- Freehold buildings 40 years ‘

- Leasehold improvements Life of lease, up to 10 years
Office and computer equipment ) )

- Computers and similar equipment 3 -5Syears

- Furniture, fittings and other equipment 3 - 10 years

- Terminals |eased to customers andrelated software | 3 - 5 years

Theresidual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed ateach
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. When reviewing residual values, the Group estimates
theamountthatit would currently obtain for the disposal ofthe asset, after deducting the estimated cost of disposal
iftheassetwerealready of the age and condition expected atthe end of its useful life, Gains and | osses on disposal
of praoperty, plant and equipmentare included as part of “other operating income” or “other operating expense” in
the Consolidated Statement of Income.

An asset retirement obligation is recognised at the sametime as the leasehold impravements, i .e. when alterations
to property are made. The obligation is therefore an expense related to the leasehold improvement and is
recognised over the term of the lease.

Finandial liabilities

Financial liabilities include amounts due to banks, merchant payables and Corporate Trust deposits. Issued financial
liabilities or their components are classified as liabilities where the substance of the contractual arrangement results
inthe Group having a present obligation to either deliver cash or ancther financial asset to the holder, to exchange
financial liabilities on terms that are potentially unfavourable or to satisfy the obligation otherwise than by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financia!l asset for a fixed number of equity shares.

Financial liabilities are recognised inthe Consolidated Statement of Financial Position and areinitially measured at
fair value, beingtheirissue proceeds (fair value of consideration received) net of transaction costs incurred.

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured atamortised cost with any difference between the proceeds net of
transaction costs and the redemption value recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Income usingthe effective
interest rate method, with the exception of forward foreigncontracts. The carrying value of finandial liabilities is a
reasonable approximation of fair value. The Group de-recognises a financial liability when its contractuat obligations
aredischarged, cancelled or expired.

Shareholders’ equity

Share capital

Share capital refers to the funds that a company raises in exchange for issuing anownershipinterestinthe company
in the form of shares. Itis presented as equity and represents 6,400,001 ordinary shares of €1 each.

Capitol contribution

Capital contributions represent amounts received from US. Bancorp {via its subsidiary U.S. Bank National
Association) which are non-refundable and for which neither U.S. Bancorp nor U.S. Bank National Association
receives shares.

Retained earnings ‘
Retained earnings represent the undistributed accumulated profits of the Bank, its branches and its subsidiaries.
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Other reserves

The other reserves are made up of the foreign currency translation reserves and the pension re-measurement
reserve. The foreign currency translation reserve represents the cumulative gains and | osses on the translation of
the Group’s net investment i n foreign operations. The pension re-measurement reserve represents actuarial gains
and losses of the Group’s defined benefit plans.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the Consdlidated Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise amounts due
from banks and overdrafts. They are convertible into cash with an insignificant risk of changes invalue and with
original maturities of less than seven days. The Group classifies money market placements as cash and cash
equivalents dueto the shortterm of these deposits. The Group does not consider i nvestment with affiliates as part
of cashand cash equivalents. Part of the balances that the Group holds withcentral banks are held as investments
to comply with regulatory requirements.

New accounting pronouncements with a future effective date

Certain new standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards have been i ssued by the |ASB that are
not yet effective (IAS 8 amendments on accounting estimates, IBOR reform Phase 2 amendments). The Group has
notyetadopted any of these before their effective date and does not expect any material impact on the Consolidated
Financial Statements in the period of initial application.
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3 Fee, Commission and Leasing Income

} Fee, Commission and Leasing Income

in thousands of Euro 2020 2015
Merchant processing services {including terminal leasing income)* 212,549 293,927
Corporate payment products revenue 1,318 4,550
Depositary services 1,464 1,432
Corporatetrustrevenue 34,620 43,707

} Fee, commission and leasingincome 249,951 343,616

*equipment rental income was EUR 23,899 thousand in 2020 {2019: EUR 21,398 thousand).

4 Iinterest Income and Expense

] Interest income and Expense i
in thousands of Euro 2020 2019
Interest income
Interestfrom central banks 5,275 15,893
Interestfrom other banks 928 2,256
Interestincome from affiliate companies ) - 2,173
Totalinterest income 6,203 20,322
Interest axpense
Interestexpense on short term horrowings 36 219
Interest expense on corporate trust deposits 1,610 7423
Interestexpense—leaseactivities 763 891
Total interest expense 2,409 8,533

| Net interestincome 3,794 11,789 |

5 Other Operating Income

| Other Operating income |
In thousands of Euro 2020 2019
Services providedto affiliate companies 10,757 15,747
Other aperating income - other 98 404

] Other operatingincome 10,855 16,151 |

6 Staff Numbers

The average number of employees during the year was 2,216 (2019: 2,113)
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7 Other Operating Expense

In 2013, the Group amended its long term incentive plan. This amendment enabled U.S. Bancorp to grant certain
employees shares in U.S. Bancorp as a retention incentive. The charge for these awards in 2020 was EUR 830
thousand (2019: EUR 733 thousand). As at 31 December 2020, EUR 65 thousand was payable (2019: EUR 72
thousand). Thechargefor all other longtermincentive awardsin 2020was EUR 4,042 thousand (2019: EUR 3,499

thousand}.

[ Other Operating Expense

in thousands of Euro Note 2020 2019
Staff costs
Wages and salaries 140,537 134,964
Social security costs 14,770 14,750
Pensioncosts - defined contributionplans 23 10,313 9,480
Pensioncosts - defined benefit plans 23 347 384
Staff costs - other 10,739 12,428
Auditor’s remuneration
Statutory audit 789 675
Other assuranceservices - 91
Other
Depreciationof property, plantand equipment 17 21,877 17,761
Amortisationof intangible assets 16 17,690 3,823
Losses fromdisposals of fixed assets 896 508
Marketingandbusiness development 12,115 11,788
Occupancyandequipment 8,751 7,933
Merchant processing 18,608 28,094
Other operating expenses - other 25,175 18,474
Bank processing fees* 24,570 22,902
Postage, printing and supplies 2,234 2,285
Professional services 12,979 15,106
Technologyandcommunications 12,798 8,562
Services provided by affiliate companies 5,351 16,630
Total operating expenses 340,539 326,638
Foreign exchangeloss 746 1,861

| Total other operating expense 341,285 328,499
*Bank processing fees includes negative interest expense

Directors’ emoluments are analysed as follows:
in thousands of Euro 2020 2019
Remuneration inrespect of services as Director 210 160
Remuneration inconnection with management 1,424 1,156
Pension costs ~defined contribution plans (other thaninrespect of services as Director)* 79 73
Total Directors’ emoluments ' ' 1,713 1,389

*Pensions costs relate to payments for two Directors. No payments have been paid to post Directors during the current or prior year.
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8 Income Taxes

| income Taxes

Inthousands of Euro Rate 2020 2019
Current tax

[rish corporation tax

Currentyear - 2,355
Adjustmentin respect of prioryear* {2,067} 35
Release of uncertain tax provision (40,071} -
Foreign tax

Currentyear 6,860 4,849
Adjustmentin respectof prioryear (206) 912
Deferred tax (benefit)/expense (9,225) 2,257
Income tax {benefit)/expensefor theyear {44,709) 10,408

A reconciliationof tax on profit on ordinary activities at the standardIrish corporation tax rate to the Group’s

actualtaxchargeisasfollows:

(Loss)/ profitbefore tax (75,681) 42,666
Theoretical tax charge at statutoryrate 12.5% {9,460) 5,333
Tax effect of items whichare notdeductible or assessable for taxation
purposes:
{Reversal}/Addition of prior year tax (2,272) 947
Non-deductible expenses 478 363
Total temporarydifferences not accounted forindeferredtax {811} 2,642
Overseas profits taxed ata higher rate 5,865 1,169
TCA 1997 s396D Loss carriedback to prioryear 1,993 -
Releaseof uncestain taxprovision (40,071} -
Temporary difference on subsidiaries {438) -
~ Other adjustments 7 (46)
| Income tax expense for theyear (44,709) 10,408 |
Deferred tax as included on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position:
| DeferredTaxes |
in thousands of Euro 2020 2019
Deferredtax liability
Tax effect of taxable temporary differences
Otherintangbles: amortisation {7,234} (1,165)
Asset timing differences {4,743)  (4,447)
Foreign exchange differences - {12)
| Recognised deferred tax liability {11,977) {5,624) |
In thousands of Euro 2020 2019
Deferredtax Asset
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences
Assettiming differences 4,418 2,604
Net operating losses 6,331 -
Re-measurement of defined benefit plan 1,168 1,039
Exchange movements - 32
| Recognised deferred tax asset 11,917 3,675 |

* The Irish prior yeor adjustment of €2,067K includes a portion of 2020 current year losses chaimed in accordance with TCA 1997 s396D. This

accelernted loss relief & induded in the recondliation of theoretical tax charge and actual tox cherge,
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8 Income Taxes {continued)

Underlying profit before tax for the year ended 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016included a gain on sale of
sharesin Visa Europe, For the purposes of taxation this gain was considered trading income in nature subject to Irish
‘corporate taxatthe rate of 12.5%. An uncertain tax provisionwas included within the 2017 and 2016 current income
tax expense and continued to be carried on the balance sheet for the years 2018 and 2019 inrespect of this uncertain
position given thatthe Irish tax authorities could challenge this taxtreatment and argue thatitshouldbe taxed as a
capital receipt. However, during 2020 the Irish tax authorities confirmed to Elavon that they were not challenging
the tax treatment and hence this uncertainty provision has now been released.

At 31 December 2020, there are open tax inquiries in certain jurisdictions within the Group’s locations in Europe
Whilethere can be no certainty onthe outcome, the directors are of the viewthat itis unlikelyat this stage that they
will require settlement at the Group's expense at the date of these financial statements.

9 Cash Balances
The Group is required to comply with regulatory liquidity requirements under the Capital Requirements Directive
and Regulation, as supported by EBA guidelines and technical standards.

The Group has remainedinfull compliance and as at 31 December 2020 maintained a buffer significantly higher than
regulatory requirements. The Grouphas met its highguality liguid asset requirement by placing cashwith the Central
Bank of Ireland and the Bank of England.

In addition to Liquidity Coverage Ratio, the Groupis also required to place cash with the Central Bank of Ireland, the
National Bank of Poland, andthe Bankof England to meet minimum reserve and cash deposit ratio requirements; as
at 31 December 2020 such balances were EUR 54,555 thousand (2019: EUR 57,972 thousand]).

As at 31 December 2020 the Group had money market placements of EUR 153,491 thousand {2019: EUR 179,111 '
thousand) This comprised of the foltowing balances:

* EUR 39,161 thousand placed with Barclays;
o EUR 65,642 thousand placed with HSBC;
» EUR 48,688 thousand placed with Danske Bank.

The term of these deposits was from 31 December 2020 to 4 January 2021,

With exception for the Group's investments with affiliates, all investing or financing transactions during 2020 and
2019 involved the use of cash or cash equivalents.

[ Cash Balances ‘
In thousandsof Euro 2020 2019
Cash and cash equivalents

Balances atcentral banks 8,886,266 7,580,668
Cash and balances with banks 241,464 127,888
Money market placements 153,491 179,111
. Cash withaffiliates ) 8,305 ‘ 22,166
Total cashwith banks and affiliates 9,289,526 7,909,833
Overdrafts (314) (723)
Totalcash and cash equivalents 9,289,212 7,909,110
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10 Leases

The leases thatare accounted for under iFRS 16 all relate to buildings. Periods covered by termination options are
included in the lease term only if it is reasonably certain the termination option will not be exercised.

1 Leasehold Assets

In thousands of EUR 2020 2019
At 1 January 18,202 20,677
Increases* 29,223 3,499
Decreases (3,110} -
Amortisation for the year (6,694) (5,974)
Net beok value at 31 December 37,621 18,202
*2020 indudes EUR 25 million In relation to new Chemmywood F1 Buiiding

1 Amounts Recognised in Profit and Loss {
in thousands of EUR 2020 2019
Depreciation on leasehold assets 6,694 5,974
interest expense on lease liabilities 763 . 891
Total cash outflow for leases 7,625 5,899

I Lease Liabilities i
In thousands of EUR 2020 2019
Analysed os:
Non-current 35,955 12,280
Curent 5,072 6,212
Total 41,027 18,492

| Maturity Analysis |
in thousands of EUR 2020 2019
Year 1 5,072 6,647
Year 2 4,579 4,458
Year 3 4,380 2,780
Year 4 3,135 2,345
Year 5 2471 1,751
Onwards 21,390 511

Varioble lease payments

Some of the property leases in which the Group is thelessee contain variable lease payment terms that arelinked
toindexes. Variable paymentterms are used to linkrental paymentsto market related rates. The vanable payments
are present in 6 leasehold agreements. The Group expects this ratio to remain constantin future years.

Extension & termination details

| Leasehold Assets — Office Buildings

2020 2019
Number of Leasehold assets 13 9
Number of leases with extension options 3 1
Number of leases with variable payments linked to an index 6 4
Number of leases with termination options 2 3
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11 Investment in Associate

On 10 June 2020, the Group sold its entire shareholding in Tillhub GmbH {Tillhub'); an established point-ofsale
software solution providerin Germany, for EUR 2,410 thousand. Thisresulted ina gain of EUR 1,13 1thousand. The
following tableillustrates the summarised financial i nformation of the i nvestment in Tillhub for the full financial year
of 2019 and from January to June 2020:

l Investmentin Associate J
In thousands of Euro 10June 2020 31 December 2019
CurrentAssets - 3,717
Non-current Assets - 41
Current Liabilities - (3,758)
Equity - -
Carrying amount of investment - 1,406
in thousands of Euro ' Periodended10 fune 2020 Year ended 31 December 2019
Revenue from contracts withcustomers 805 2,345
Costofsales {i51) (777)
Other operatingincome 5 12
Operating expenses (1,683} {4,756)
Non-operating income i 28
Loss before tax (1,023) {3,148)
Income tax expense - -
Loss for the year {continuing operations) (1,023) (3,148)

| Group's share of loss for the year {127) (391) |

12 Merchant Receivables

As at 31 December 2020, the value of receivables from merchants was EUR 111,770 thousand (201%: EUR 77,238
thousand). Merchant receivables are presented net of expected crediti{osses on the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position.

13 Receivables from Issuing Banks

As at31 December 2020 the value of receivables fromissuing banks was EUR 185,314 thousand (2019: EUR 482,651
thousand). The fair value of collateral held against receivables from issuing banks was nil 25 at 31 December 2020
{2019: nil}). None of the issuing bank receivables are deemed to be past due or impaired.

14 Investment Services Receivables

| iInvestmentServices Receivables I
In thousands of Euro 2020 2019
GCTS fee receivables 11,232 12,826
Receivables from clearinghouses - Clearstream 55 68
Depositary services fee receivables 121 128

| Asat 31 December 11,408 13,022 |
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15 Goodwill

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each CGU or group of CGUs is:

| Goodwill 1
In thousands of Euro EMSCGUs  OpayoCaU  Gersceu TOtR
Cost
As atllanuvary2020 136,200 - 9 136,209
Additions* - 203,766 - 203,766
Exchange rate movements (3,127} (5,313) - (8,440)

l As at 31 December 2020 133,073 198,453 9 331,535 1
Cost
As atl lanuary2019 128,079 - 9 128,088
Additions* 5,338 - - 5,338
Exchangerate movements 2,783 - - 2,783

l Asat 31 December 2019 136,200 - 9 136,209 |

*Additions are from business combingtions.

Impairment testing of goodwill
Inlinewith the accounting policy setoutin Note 2, goodwillis tested annvally for impairmentand is also retestad
for impairment whenever there is an indication that goodwill may be impaired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, the EMS CGU group and Opayo CGU represents the lowest levelS at which
goodwill is monitored by key management personnel. The EMS CGU group comprises the total merchant processing
business across Europe, andisthesole group of CGUs for the purpose of impairment testing for this business line.
The basis of the recoverable amount is the value in use for the EMS and GCTS business lines,

The valueinuseis calculated by discounting management’s cash flow projections for 20 years. Management useda
period of longer than five years due to the nature of the assets, the company’s historical experience of cashflow
generation and the expectations for market development and growth.

The discountrate of 10% {2019: 11%} used in the calculationrepresents the cost of capital that the Group's ultimate
parent undertaking allocates to investments in Europe.

An average short term growth rate of 18.5% was applied based on management’s three year plan. For Opayo, an
average short term growth rate of 16.7% was applied based on management's three year plan.

A long-termgrowth rate of 5% (2019: 2%) was used to extrapolate the cashflows. This rate was 8% for Opayo. The
growth rate is achievable in the longer term based on customer initiatives implemented, low attrition leves, and
past experience showing that growth rates of the portfolios have exceeded GDP growth rates. For Opayo it is also
achievable due to synergies created by the acquisition.

An expensemargin rate based onmanagement’s three yearplan and a 1% reduction for the following year was used
to arriveatthelongtermrateof 58%(2019:44%). For Opayothe expense margin was also based on the three year
plan rate of 57% by 2023. The margin has been maintained at this level for the long term.

The recoverable amount for goodwill in 2020 is caleutated to be in excess of the camrying amount. As a result no
impairment of goodwill was recognised in either 2020 or 2019. Management have factored in additional uncertainty
in relation to COVID-19 in the cashflow projections. Additionally sensitivity analysis was performed over the key
assumptions (growth rate anddiscountrate) and if any of the inputs were to be reasonably changed, therecoverable
amount would still exceed the carrying amount.
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16 Intangible Assets — Other

| Intangible Assets-Other

Corporate
Computer Merchant -
inthousandsof Euro Software Contracts Trust Total
Contracts
Cost
Openi ng balance 51,529 112,329 3,123 166981
Additions* 12,610 50,936 - 63,546
Disposals {57) - - {(57)
Exchange movements {51) {4,381) (169) {4,601)
Closing balance of cost account 64,031 158,884 2,954 225869
Accumuiated amortisation
Opening balance 47,795 92,216 3,113 143,124
Disposals {98} - - (98)
Amortisationcharge for theyear 3,313 14,367 10 17,690
Exchange movements o {41} (3,659) {169) (3,869)
Closing balance of the accumulated amortisation 50,969 102,924 2,954 156847
| Net book value as at 31 December 2020 13,062 55,960 - 69,022 |
“gdditions are from business combinations and acquired software
] Intangible Assets-Other §
Corporate
in thousands of Euro Computer  Merchant Trust Total
Software Contracts
Contracts
Cost
Opening balance 51,310 95,051 2,970 149331
Additions 407 14,321 - 14,728
Disposals (217) - - (217)
Exchange movements 29 - 2,957 153 3,139
Closing balance of cost account 51,529 112,329 -+ 3,123 166,981
Accumufated amortisation
Opening balance 45,767 87,830 2,946 136,543
Disposals (211) - - (211}
Amortisationcharge for theyear 2,217 1,591 15 3,823
Exchange movements 22 2,795 152 2,969
Closing balance of the accumulated amortisation 47,795 92,216 3,113 143,124
| Net book value as at 31 December 2019 3,734 20,113 10 23,857 |
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16 Intangible Assets — Other (continued)

impairment testing of other intangible assets

The recoverable amount of the contracts has been determined based on avaluein use calculation. Thevalue in use
is calculated by discounting management’s cash flow projections for 15 years. Managementused a period of longer
thanfiveyears duetothenature of the assets, the company’s historicalexperience of cashflow generationand the
expectations for market development and growth

The discountrate of 10% (2019: 11%) used in the calculationrepres ents the cost of capital that the Group's ultimate
parent undertaking all ocates to investments in Europe.

An expense margin rate based onmanagement’s threeyearplan and a 1% reduction for the following yearwas used
to arrive at the long termrate of 58% (2019: 44%).

Avolume attrition rate using a 6 year average of historical data was used.
The recoverable amount forintangible assets in 2020is calculated to be inexcess of the carrying amount. As a result,
no impairment of intangible assets was recognised in 2020 (2019: nil}. Management have factored in additional

uncertaintyin relationto COVID-19inthe cashflow projections. If any of theinputs were to be reasonably changed,
the recoverable amount would still exceed the carrying amount.

17 Property, Plant and Equipment

| Property, Plantand Equipment

Premises and Officeand  Terminal

in thousands of Euro - leasehold computer Retated Total
improvements equipment Assets

Cost

Opening balance 20,585 70,209 58,789 149,583

Additions 6,509 6,787 19,902 33,198

Disposals & amounts written off (130} (305) (11,604) (12,039)

Exchange movements (345) (502) (2,715) (3,562)

Closing balance of cost account 26,619 76,189 64,372 167,180

Accumulated depreciation and write-offs

Opening balance 11,974 47,758 31,099 90,831

Disposals & amounts written off (30} (158} (9,167} {9,355}

Depreciationchargefor theyear 2,192 8,104 11,581 21,877

Exchange movements {139} (285) (1,471) {1,895)

Closing balance of the accumulated depreciation

aocount 13,997 55,419 32,042 101,458
I Net book value as at 31 December 2020 12,622 20,770 32,330 65,722 |
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17 Property, Plant and Equipment {continued)

[ Property, Plantand Equipment

Premisesand Officeand  Terminal
In thousands of Euro leasehold computer Related Total
improvements  equipment Assets
Cost
Opening balance 19,427 60,352 47,408 127,187
Additions 1,288 15,200 18,257 34,745
Disposals & amounts written off (229) (5,485) (7,828) {13,542)
Exchange movements a9 142 952 1,193
Closing balance of cost account 20,585 70,209 58,789 149,583
Accumulated depreciation and write-offs
Opening balance 11,379 42,530 26,481 80,450
Dispasals & amounts written off (191) {1,770} (6,256) {8,217)
Depreciationchargefor theyear 718 6,852 10,191 17,761
Exchange movements 68 86 683 837
Closing balance of the accumutated depredation
account 11,974 47,758 31,099 90,831
| Net book value as at 31 December 2019 8,611 22,451 27,690 58,752 |
18 Other Assets
The following other assetsare deemed to be current assets.
[ Other Assets f
In thousands of Euro 2020 2019
Commercial loans—receivable 5,106 23,031
Prepayments, deferredexpenses andother receivables 19,199 9,782
Tax debtors 376 383
Other assets—other 3,167 220
Receivables from affiliate companies 31,565 14,112
Forward exchange contracts 667 373
Interestreceivable 111 629
I As at 31 December 60,191 48,530 |

Forward contracts entered into by the Group are generally traded in anover-the-counter market with professional
market counterparties on standardised contractual terms and conditions. The contracts are short-term deposits and

the |atest date of maturity for the above contracts is 28 January 2021.

Forward contracts frequently involve a high degree of leverage, and a relatively small movementin a currency
exchange rate may give rise to significant loss. Over-the-counter derivatives may éxpose the Group to the risks
associated with the absence of an exchange market an which to close out anopen position, The use of standardised
contractual terms and conditions by the Group mitigates this risk. The Group has credit exposure to the

counterparties of forward contracts.

The Group settles its forward contracts on a net basis and therefore mitigates such liquidity risk. The Group’s
exposureunderderivative contracts is closely monitored as part of the overall management of the Group’s market

risk.
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18 Other Assets (continued)

| Forward Exchange Contracts

Inthousandsof Euro Notional Amount | Fair Value Assets | Fair Value Liabilities
PLN 61,965 568 -
NOK 17,094 - (91)
SEK 14,801 - {144)
CHF 7,388 - (19)
AUD 3,729 - {43)
Other 31,865 95 {28)
| Asat 31 December 2020 136,842 667 (325) 1

} Forward Exchange Contracts

in thousands of Euro Notional Amount | Fair Value Assets | Fair Value Liabilities
PLN 36,193 - {159}
NOK 19,888 356 -
CHF 11,915 - (65)
AUD 1,847 - (26)
Other 28,489 17 (53)

| Asat 31 December 2019 98,332 373 {303) |

19 Corporate Trust Deposits

| Corporate Trust Depasits |
In thousands of Euro 2020 2019
Accruedinterest - 36
Non-interest bearing deposits 106,841 214,766
Interestbearing deposits 8,189153 6,673,366

| Asat 31 December 8,295994 6,888,168 |

Corporatetrusttransactions are long-termintheir nature, However, thecash insuch transactionstructuresis held
on a short-term basis. Thus, itis deemed that corporate trust deposits could be repayable within 7 days.

20 Merchant Payables

As at31 December 2020, the value of merchant payables was EUR 417,958 thousand (2019: EUR 638,097 thousand).
These batances reflect the amount owing to Merchants, from the Group, for transactions processed.
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21 Other Liabilities

The following otherliabilities are deemed to be current liabilities with the exception of the Pension liability.

| Other Liabilities

Inthousands of Euro Note 2020 2019*
Accrualsandsundry creditors 49,525 49,759
Pensionliability 23 12,212 10,856
VAT and other tax creditors 5,289 6,388
Corporate payables 6,489 2,450
Deferred revenue 3,457 2,715
Forward exchange contracts 18 325 303
Payable to affiliate companies 7,975 1,108
Commercial lcans—payable 1,192 586
Interest payable 1,356 1,025
Other tiabilities —other ] 57 66
IAsat 31 December 87,877 75,256 |

*comparatives dassifications hove been updated for yeor on year comparotive purposes. Interest payable has been re-clossed from Accrusls ond

sundry creditors to Interest payable

22 Financial Liabilities

I Changesin liabilities arising from finanding activities

Payments for Parent
In thousandsof Euro Company re-charges for Total
. share-based payments
Opening balance asat 1 January 2020 - -
Cashflows 830 830
Foreign Exchange movement - -
Changes infairvalue - -
Other* (830) {830)
| Closing batance as at 31 December2020 - -]
| Changesin liabilities arising from finandng activities I
Payments for Parent
inthousands of Euro Companyre-charges for Total
share-based payments
Opening Balance asat 1 January 2019 - -
Cashflows ] 733 733
Foreign Exchange movement - -
Changes in fairvalue - -
Other* {733) {733)

| Closing balance as at 31 December2019 -

-1

*The ‘Other’ row includes a contribution from U.S, Bank National Association which represents the cash settfement of awards to employees during

the year orising from restricted stock units of U.S. Bancorp.
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23 Pension Costs

Defined contribution plans

The Group has established defined contribution pension plans on behalf of employees. Under the terms of the main
plan the Group will match contributions paid by employees up to 12% of the contributing employee’s salary.

The pension charge for the year ended 31 December 2020was EUR 10,313 thousand (2019: EUR 9,480 thousand) of

which EUR 667 thousand was payable at 31 December 2020 (2019*: EUR 660 thousand).
*Prior year hos been restated for comparative purposes

Defined benefit plans
The Group provides employees in the Germany branch with a defined benefit pensions plan. Defined benefit
schemes are closed to new entrants.

The characteristics of the German defined benefit pension schemes are outlined below based on actuarial report
prepared on 15 December 2020,

Germany

In Germany there are 2 defined benefit schemes, both of which are closed to new entrants. The sc hemes are
Occupational Pension schemes categorised as "Direktzusagen” or Direct Pension Commitments. The schemes are
registered in Germanyand are subject to the Regulatory Framework in place in Germany including the Social Code
(SGB 111}, the Occupational Pensions Act {BetrAVG) and the insurance Supervision Act (VAG}. Occupational Pension
schemes fall outside the supervision of the German Federal Financial Supervisory Authority {Bafin).

Plan A, dated 4 May 1994, comprises a final salary plan that provides a lifelong annuity equal to 0.5% of the final
salary for every year of pensionable service.

For portions of the salaries above the German Social Security Contribution Ceiling {$5CC), 1.5% of final salary for
every year of pensionable service applies.

Plan B, dated 2 January 2003, is a Cash Balance Plan with notional employer contributions amounting to 3% of the
total base salary plus 6% ofthe base salaryabove the SSCC The fixed interest credit of6% p.a. is granted immediatdy,
takingintoaccount the outstanding years untif the age of 60. Most employees of Plan Awere transferred to PlanB,
replacing the accrued benefits in the former plan with an actuarially equivalent initial credit.

A Board of Trustees has been appointed to administer the planin Germany. The Board of Trustees is requiredto act
inthe interestof theplan and all relevant stakeholders in the scheme {active and i nactive employees, retirees and
employers). The Boardof Trustees are responsible for the investment strategy with regard to the ptan assets.

Risk
The Defined Benefit pians as outlined above typically expose the Group to actuanial risks induding; investment risk,
interest rate risk, pension increase risk and salary increase risk.

Investment risk is the risk that the value of plan assets may be impacted by market conditions. Investment risk is
mitigated by a prudent i nvestment strategy, including no investment in money market instruments. I nvestmerts are
well diversified, such that the failure of any single investment would not have a material impact on the overalllevel
of assets.

The interestrate applied is determined inaccordance with1AS 19, Employee Benefits. The standard establishes that
the rate used to discount post-employment benefit obligations shall be determined by reference to market yields at
the end of the reporting period on high quality carporate bonds.

In countries where thereis no deep marketfor suchbonds, the marketyields on government bonds shall be used.

The currency and term of the corporate bonds or government bonds shall be consistent with the currency and
estimated term of the post-employment benefit obligations.
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23 Pension Costs {continued)
Pensionincrease risk is theriskof anincrease inpensions leading to an increasein obligations. A sensitivity analysis
of the pension increase rate is provided further on in this note.

Salaryincreaseriskis therisk of anincreasein salaries leading to an increase in obligations. The salaryincrease rate
risk is mitigated by the remuneration policy of the Group. A sensitivity analysis of the salary increase rate s provided
further on in this note. Further details of the policies and procedures employed by the Group to manage risks are
outlined in Note 26.

Of the total movement in the pension plan surplus, EUR 347 thousand (2019: EUR 384 thousand)is includedin staff
costs inthe Consolidated Statement of income and EUR 1,039 thousand (2019: EUR 1,606 thousand} is included in
re-measurement of defined benefit plans in the Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive income. The
components of the total movement are as follows:

| Pension Benefit |
in thousands of Euro 2020 2019
Components of pension cost
Currentservice cost 240 230
Net interest expense ] ] ) 107 154
Components of pensioncost recordedin profit or loss 347 384
Return on planassets, excluding interest 219 {694)
Actuarial (gains)/losses recognisedin theyear 820 2,300
Components of pension cost recordedin other compre hernsive income 1,039 1,606
| Total recognised in Comprehensivelncome 1,386 1,990 |
in thousands of Euro 2020 2019
Changesinthe fair value of plan assets
Openingbalanceasat1 Janvary 7.382 6,734
Interestincome 73 116
Return on planassets, excluding interest {219) 694
Benefits paid - -
Contributions by employer (201) {162}
Asat 31 December 7,035 7,382
In thousandsof Euro 2020 2019
Changesinthe present value of plan liabilities
Openingbalance asat1January 18,238 15,645
Current service cost 240 230
Benefits paid (231} (207)
Interestcosts 180 270
Actuarial {gains)/losses during the year (see table on next page) 820 2,300
As at 31 December 19,247 18,238
] Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation (12,212) {10,856} |

Plan assets in Germany have a quoted market pricein an active market. They areheld in the formof units of debt
and equity funds managed by DWSInvastments, (the U.S. retail brand of Deutsche Bank’s global asset management
division). Those diversified funds investin a wide range of underlying instruments across different economic sectors.
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23 Pension Costs {continued)

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are:

| Plan Assets 2020 2019 |
Equity instruments {Geographic location Europe; 2020: 100%, 2019 : 100%) 53% 55%
Debtinstruments {Geographic locationEurope; 2020: 100%, 2019: 100%) 46% 44%
Other {Geographiclocation Europe; 2020: 100%, 2019: 100%) 1% 1%

| Asat 31 December

100% 100% |

| Principal Assumptions in Determining Pension Obligations 2020 2019
Discourntrate 0.75% 1.75%
Rateofsalaryincrease 3.0% 3.0%
Rateof pension increase 2.0% 2.0%
Retirement Age: Men 65 63
Retirement Age: Women 63 60/63
Mortality/ Disabilty / Ri:I hut‘::;j: Ri ?hu::feecl:
Probability to be married 2018G 2018G
Principal Assumptions in Determining Pension Obligations Women Men Women ien

Staff Turnover Rates

2020 2020 2019 2019

Age

20-25 10% 10% 10% 6%
26-30 8% 8% 7% 5%
31-35 6% 6% 5% 4%
36-40 5% 5% 3% 3%
41-45 4% 4% 3% 2%
46-50 3% 3% 2% 2%
51-55 2% 2% 1% 1%
Over 55 1% 1% 0% 0%

J Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on defined benefit obligations |
In thousands of Euro 2020 2019
From changesindemographicassumptions - -
From changesinfinancial assumptions 835 2,257
From experience adjustments {15) 43

J Asat 31 December 820 2,300 |

The use of assumptions in calculating the Defined Benefit Obligation {'DBO’) gives rise to uncertainty with regards to

the amount and timing of future cash flows.

The below sensitivity analysis illustrates how the DBO would be affected by a reasonably possible changein each of
the principalassumptions, ifall otherassumptions remained unchanged. The degree of variation of the assumptions
was determined by the actuaries following analysis of historical data and represents a reasonably possible change to

each of the assumptions within the duration of 1 year.
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23 Pension Costs (continued)
| sensitivityAnalysis* . - ... .. T L st . . 7120200 002019 )
Sensitivity of the discount rate
A 100 pointincrease of the discount rate woulddecrease the DBO by (15.80%) (16.00%)
A 100 point decrease of the discount rate would increase the DBO by 20.70% 21.00%
Sensitivity ofthe salary increase rate
A 50 pointincrease of the salaryincrease rate wouldincrease the DBO by 0.00% 0.00%
A 50 pointdecrease of the salary increase rate would decrease the DBO by 0.00% 0.00%
Senshtivity of the pensionincreaserate
A 25 pointincrease of the pensionincrease rate would increase the DBO by 1.50% 3.00%
A 25 pointdecrease of the pension i ncrease rate woulddecrease the DBO by {1.50%) {3.00%}

The Group’s subsidiaries fund the cost of the entitlements expected to be earned on a yearly basis. Employees pay
a fixed 6% of pensionable salary. The residual contribution {including back service payments) is paid by the entities
of the Group. The funding requirements are based onthel ocal actuarial measurement framework. In this framewark
the discountrateis set on a risk free rate. Furthermore, premiums are determined on a current salarybase
Additional liabiliti es stemmingfrom past service dueto salary increases {back-service liabilities) are paid immediately
to the Fund. Apart from paying the costs of the entitlements, the Group’s subsidiaries are not liable to pay additional
contributions in case the Fund does nothald sufficient assets. In that case, the Fund would take other measures to
restore its solvency, such as a reduction of the entitlements of the plan members.

The average duration of the benefit cbligation at 31 December 2020 is 18.2 years (2019: 17.9 years). The avaage
life remaining for members is as follows

., Active members 36.3 years (2019: 34.6 years)
. Deferred members 33.6 years (2019:34.1 years}; and
. Retired members 17.2 years (2019:17 .8 years}

The Group expects to make a contribution of EUR 213 thousand to the defined benefit plans during the next financial
year.

The actuarial valuations are available for inspection by members but are not available for public inspection.

24 Share Capital

| Share Capital ' I
Inthousands of Euro ‘ _ 2020 2019
Ordinary Share Capital - Authorised '
1,000,000,000 ordinaryshares of €1 each (2019: 1,000,000,000) 1,000,000 1,000,000
Allotted, called up and fully paid
6,400,001 ordinaryshares of €1 each (2019:6,400,001} 6,400 ] 6,400

There were no movements in the authorised or issued share capital duringthe year or during the preceding year.
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25 Capital Contribution
Capital contributions relate to amounts invested inElavon Financial Services DACby U.5. Bancorp {via its subsidiary
U.S. Bank National Assodiation) that are non-refundable and for which neithér U.S. Bancorp nor U.S. Bank National
Association receives shares.

On 30 September 2020 Elavon European Holdings B.V. invested an additional EUR 264,000 thousand in the Group.
This amount is a direct result of the acquisition of Opayo. The total capital contributions as at 31 December 2020
were EUR 853,389 thousand {2019: EUR 589,389 thousand).

The Group recognised a creditinequity, as a contribution from U.S. Bank National Associaticn of EUR 830thousand
(2019: EUR 733 thousand) which represented the cash settlement of awards to employees during the year arising
from restricted stock units of U.S. Bancorp.

26 Risk Management

The Group has defined internal governance arrangements, which indude an organisational structure with defined
lines of respansibility; a Risk Management Framework (RMF} to support the Group to achieve their strategic
objectives in a controlled manner. It does this through effective management {identification, assessment,
management, monitoring and reporting) of the risks which the Group faces strategicaly and operationally; an
Internal Control Framework designed to mitigate and manage the risks which are identified under the RMF to an
acceptablelevel; and a Remuneration Policy and practices that are consistent with and promote sound and effective
risk management. While the management of risk and the internal control environmentis the collective responsibility
of all employees, EFS assigns accountabilities to the Three Lines of Defence which clearlysets out the responsibilities
and accountabilities for risk management of the Business Lines, the Risk Management and Compliance function and
Corporate Audit Services (CAS).

1st Line of Defence: Business Operations

The First Line of Defence (FLOD)is primarily comprised of the Group’s revenue-generating business lines and support
functions (induding Legal, HR and IT). It owns the risks inherent to business activities. Responsibilities of the FLOD
include, but are not limited to:

s Developing the EFS Strategic and Financial Plan and the business plans to achieve the objectives of the
Strategic Plan in line with Risk Appetite;

» ldentifying and pursuing suitable opportunities to achieve the objectives of the Strategic Plan inline with
Risk Appetite and relevant iegal and regulatory requirements;

* Exercisingjudgement when making risk decisions including understanding therisks associated with current
and proposed activities and balancing of risk and reward in decision making;

» {dentifying, assessing, managing, monitoring and reporting onall current and emerging risks associated with
their activities and operations within Risk Appetite;

* Designing implementing operating and maintaining effective processes to identify, assess, manage,
monitor, report, escalate and mitigate risks within Risk Appetite and report on compliance;

s Demonstrating the adequacy of the design and operating effectiveness of controls to mitigate risk to within
Risk Appetite, and take appropriate action where residual risk is outside of this; and,

« Complying with theletter and thespiritof all applicable frameworks, policies, procedures, rules, laws and
regulations and maintain evidence and records to demonstrate compliance.
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26 Risk Management {continued) )
2nd Line of Defence: Oversight & Challenge

The Second Line of Defence (SLOD) is comprised of the independent Risk Management & Compliance Function
headed by the Chief Risk Officer {CRO). The Second Line of Defence provides an independent view of the qua ntity of

residual risk and the quality of risk management to Senior Management, the Executive Risk Committee {ERC), Board
Risk Committee {BRC) and Board. Responsibilities of the Second Line of Defence include, but are not [imited to:

¢ Maintaining and developing the RMF;

¢ Establishing the minimum standards and expectations for risk management activities for the First Line,
through the establishment of Second Line Risk Frameworks and Policies;

* Designing implementing, operating and maintaining effective policies and processes to identify, assess,
manage, monitor, report, escalate and mitigate risks within Risk Appetite and report on compliance;

¢ Supporting the FLODto implement Policies and procedures through review and challenge as well as through
education and traininginitiatives;

¢ Undertaking testing on the FLOD's compliance with Policies and rel evant standards, laws and regulations;

e Providing oversight of activities in Business Lines and challenging the completeness and acouracy of risk
identification, assessment, management, monitoring and reporting activities;

+ Reporting on EFS’s adherence to the RAS to the ERC and BRC;

¢ Undertaking horizon scanning of both current and emerging risks stemming from within EFS or from the
external environment in which the Group operates; and,

« Understanding and managing the Group’s relationship with its regulators.

3rd Line of Defence: Independent Review

The Third Line of Defence comprises of Corporate Audit Services (CAS), which is responsible for providing risk -based
independent assurance to Senior Management, the Board Audit Committee and/or the Board. CAS provides an
independent review of the first two lines of defence, which supports the Boardand / or the Board Audit Committee
in its assessment of the quality of the Group’s Intemal Control Framewaork. CAS services are designed to evaluate
and improve the effectiveness of risk management including control and governance processes.

CAS evaluates the compliance of all activities and units of the Group (induding the Risk Management & Compliance
Function) with its Policies and procedures. CAS also assesses whether existing Policies and procedures remain
adequate and comply with legat and regulatory requirements. CAS reports its findings directly to the Board Audit
Committee.

The Board of Directors

The Board has ultimate res ponsibility for the ethical oversight of the Group, setting the business strategy, ensuring
thatrisks are propery identified and managed and that the Group operates in compliance with regulatory and
legis|ative requirements.

The Board delegates authority for the ongoing management and oversight of certain activities to management
through the Board Risk Committee (“BRC"}, Board Audit Committee, and Board Remuneration and Nomination
Committee.

The management and oversight of existing policies and risk governance documents are d el egated through the BRC
to key senior management personnel through the Executive Risk Committee ("ERC"} and designated Senior
Operating Committees {“SOCs"”} within the Group’s Governance Structure. The governance structure includes the
following Committees:
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EFS Board
Board
Commintees Board Audil Commitiee Board Risk Commitiee B::z;:’;‘::z:"“g;?:;;lzgd
Exocutive Executive Commiltee Executive Risk Committee
Commitiees

Sentor Operating Assel 8 Liabllity Cred . 1 Openational Risk Complance
Committop:s ¢ Mansgement Committae I A Commitiee ][ Committew I iasnegement Commites
Operating Committees

& Working Groups Supporting Governance Structures

Board Risk Committee
The Board Risk Committee ("BRC") has been delegated authority by the Board to oversee the Group’s RMF and
monitor all aspects of risk assodated with the operations of the Group. The BRC provides advice to the Board on all
matters related to the RMF such as Risk Appetite considerations and considers the Group’s risk profile relative to
appetite and strategy.

The BRC oversees the Risk Management and Compliance Function andthe Executive Risk Committee including the
design and implementation of Risk and Compliance Frameworks and Policies.

Board Audit Committee

The Board Audit Committee has been delegated authority to oversee the financial reporting process, the Internal
Contro! Framework, compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the statutory audit of the accounts,
auditors’ independence and the performance of the CAS function,

Board Remuneration and Nomination Committee

The Board Remuneration and Nomination Committee has been delegated authority by the Board to oversee the
Group's remuneration practices in line with the Remuneration Policy and relevant regulations; makes
recommendations to the Boardin respect of the remuneration of the Executive Directors a nd Senior Management,

The Board has established a number of management committees, as follows:

Executive Committees

* Executive Committee: works with and advises the CEQ, ensuringa collaborative approach to decision
making and collective ownership of strategydevelopment and implementation, i ncluding promoting actions
to address performanceissues as required.

¢ The primary purpose of the EFS Executive Committee is to lead a single purpose-led organisation, where
strategic and operational plans are fully aligned, are consistent with the Group's values, culture and
strategic plans.

s The EFS Executive Committee considers the Group’s performance (regarding financial, operational,
customer related, market factors), Business Line and operational updates and People/Talent/Culture
matters. It also has oversight responsibilities for the Asset and Liability Management Senior Operating
Committee {'ALMC’). The EFS Executive Committee is also responsible for the oversight of the operations
and management of the Group’s Branch Network.

* ExecutiveRisk Committee (ERC) is responsible for the oversight and management of risk within the Group
atanExecutivelevel. It is the primary SLOD Committee, reporting to the BRC and chaired by the CRO.

» The ERC is responsible for executive oversight of the Risk Management Framework, induding monitoring
adherence to Risk Appetite and fostering sound risk governance and risk culture within the Group.
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Risk Management {continued)

The ERC sets policies and monitors all risk types across the Group to enable the effective and efficient
deliveryof the Group’s Risk Strategy. ERC also has oversight responsibilities for the Operational Risk, Credit
and Compliance Management Committees.

Senior Operating Committees

Asset & Liability Management Committee has delegated responsibility from the EFS Executive Committee
to formul ate andimplement the asset and liability management strategies within the context of the Policies
set by the Board. Additionally, it implements the Treasury Policies set by the Board into day-today
procedures while managing the Group’s assets and liabilities to accomplish the Group’s overal financial
objectives.

The ALMC provides oversight of Liquidity, Market, Financial and Capital Adequacy risks as well as monitoring
external economic and market factors that may affect the Group and its business model. It provides
oversight and formally reviews and recommends for approval the [ nternal Liquidity Adequacy Assessment
Process ('ILAAP’), Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process ("ICAAP’) and Recovery Plan for EFS.

Credit Committee is the primary management committee dedicated to the oversight and management of
Credit Risk within the Group. It has been delegated responsibility by the ERC and is responsible for
implementing the high-level credit direction and Policies set by the Board into day-to-day Policies and
procedures for the Group.

Additionally, it has 2 primary role in the management of credit, the development of new credit products,
day-to-day monitoring and decision-making in relation to Credit Risk, managing and monitoring external
debtors and establishing the internal credit controls of the Group.

Operational Risk Committee (ORC) is the primary management committee dedicated to the oversight and
management of Operational Risk, including IT Security, Fraud and Payments Risks, Data Governance and
Third-Party Risk Management within the Group. It is responshble for reviewing the Operational Risk
Framework and related Policies, the oversight of related risk programmes and es calatingmatters to the ERC
for decision, as required.

Compliance Management Committee is the primary management committee dedicated to the oversight
and management of Compliance and Conduct Risks within the Group including Prudential Risk, Enterprise
Finandal Crime Compliance Risk, and Anti-Bribery & Corruption Risk. [t is res ponsible for the review of the
Compliance and Conduct RiskFramework and related Policies; the oversight of rel ated risk programmes and
escalating matters to the ERC for decision as required.

Approoch to Managing Risk

The Group’s Risk Management activities are conducted under the foundations set out within the RMF and supported
by robust systems of governance and intemal control as outlined in the Corporate Governance Framework and
Internal Control Framework respectively.

The Group managesits risks through the risk cyde: identification, assessment {or i nterchangeably ‘measurement’,
management (including mitigation), monitoring and reporting. The principles and approach outlined below are
applied to all risks.

Identify A deliberate and systematic effort to identify and document riew or changing risks
considering bath intemat and external factors. Risks are assigned a risk type which drives
the processes that follow.

Assess Identified risks are assessed andmeasured to establish the qualitative and quantitative
valueandsize of the risk, the effectiveness of controls and recommended actions.
Contro! The response to the identified risk is considered and challenged, with an appropriate

response putin placeto ensure the residual risk remains within risk appetite.
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Risk Cycle

Monitor
and Report

Manage

Risk Frameworks set out the prindples and system of governance for the management of EFS’s Material Risks. These
Frameworks are supported by Risk Policies and Risk Standards which set out detailed requirements and roles and
responsibilities for the management of specific risks.

These Frameworks and Policies, {combined with supporting Standards and SLOD and FLOD Procedures where
relevant) set out the specific risk management processes (i dentification, assessment, management and monitoring
and reporting), where relevant, in place to address and manage each Risk. Qutlined below is the Risk Framework
architecture which highlights the supporting Risk Frameworks of the RMF for specific groups of Risk types.

Risk
Management
Framework |

Compliance
and Conduct
Risk )

Operational |
Risk

Risk Appetite CreditRisk Business Risk

The table below sets out how the EFS Leve! 0 Risks**, as outlined in the EFS Risk 1D Library, are addressed by Risk
Frameworks in the Risk Management Framework architecture:

s

work

o o B -l -
Level 0 Risk (*Material) ~*- EFS Risk Frame

Credit Risk* Credit Risk Framework

Operational Risk* Operational Risk Framework

Compliance Risk* Compliance and Conduct Risk Framework
AML Risk Compliance and Conduct Risk Framework
Market Risk Business Risk Framework

Interest Rate Risk Business Risk Framework

Capital Adequacy Risk* Business Risk Framework

Liquidity Risk* , Business Risk Framework

Strategic Risk* Business Risk Framework

** Reputational Risk Is a second order risk that arkses through the foilure to adequately manage another Level 0 risk and is the refore not separately
covered in @ Risk Framework.
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Risk Management & Strategy

The Group's structured approachto risk management is documented in the RiskManagement Framework which has
heen developed with the primary purpose of providing an environment that supports the achievement of the
Group's strategic objectives in a controlled and sustainable way by facilitating an understanding of the risks the
Group faces strategically and operationally. This is achieved through aligning risk limits and controls to strategy,
through direct alignment to the Board’s risk appetite. '

Risk Appetite

Risk Appetite is an integral component of the RMF. The Group’s Risk Appetite is articulated {n the Risk Appetite
Statement (RAS} and is a documented measure of the risk that the Board is willing to accept in the pursuit of the
Group’s strategic objectives. It provides a structuredapproach to managing risk-taking activities and helps to shape
and reinforce EFS’s risk culture.

The Group’s Risk Appetite Framework establishes governance and operating structures, standards and related risk
reporting along with key supporting risk management processes for the RAS. Adherence to the RAS limits is
incorporated into key business processes includingstrategic planning, stress testing, business change management,
and incentive compensation programmes.

The RAS, supported by metrics including targets, triggers and limits, provides a basis for a robust reporting
mechanism. This facilitates timelyrecognition and remediation of issues and communication with key stakeholders,
including Senior Management, the Board, and, as appropriate, regulators.

The Group has defined qualitative statements and quantitative measures for monitoring compliance with Risk
Appetite across those risks to the Group which have been determined as material throughthe annual Material Risk
Assessment process.

Risk Management & Compliance Function

The Risk Management & Compliance Function ("RM&CF') hel ps the Group accomplishits abjectives by ensuring that
each key riskthe Group facesisidentified and propery managed. The RM&CF organisation translates Risk Appetite
and strategy into actionable policies, qualitative statements, and risk measures and limits.

The RM&CF is divided into five key disciplines: Operational Risk, Enterprise Risk, Compliance, Credit, and Anti Money
Laundering. ‘

Bonrd

CED

s

- CRO CFO

1 ]

Chief Credit Operational
Officer Risk

Erterprise Hitk Lampliance AML Treasury Finance Tax

The RM&CF supports the Board (and sub-Committees thereof) inmanaging risk across the Group through providing
a holistic view of all rel evant risks. The RM&CF ensures business units and support functions effectively manage the
risks their activities give rise to. The RM&CF is independent of the business and support units whose risks it oversees
and monitors.
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Geographical Risk

The Group’s EMS activities are diversified throughout various countries inEurope, all of whichare considered to be
developed and none of which currently experiences hyper-inflationary conditions.

The geographical market concentrations by branch booking location of GCTS, receivables from issuing banks and
EMS receivables are noted below:

| Geographical Risk ;

Corporate Trust 2020 2019
United Kingdom ’ 50% 80%
Ireland 50% 20%

| Total 100% 100% |
Receivables from Issuing Banks 2020 2019
Ireland 16% 24%
United Kingdom 28% 36%
Poland 27% 17%
Norway 22% 17%
Germany 7% 6%

| Total 100% 100% |
Merchant Receivables 2020 2019
treland 35% 32%
United Kingdom 40% 50%
Poland 8% 8%
Norway 14% 5%
Germany 3% 5%

| Total 100% 100% |

Credit Risk

Credit Risk is therisk of loss arising from the failure of a customer to meet their obligations to repayfunds extended
to them by the Bank or which the Bank expects or is committed to extend.

Industry Riskis the credit risk arising from ratings migration and/or credit |oss for borrowers in a given industry
segment,

Product type risk is the credit risk assodiated with the structure of the credit provided to the Borrower, or, nature of
underwriting process

Concentration risk is the credit risk of loss arising from significant credit exposure to a counterparty or to pools of
individual transactions with one or more common characteristics that may lead them to perform similarly, or have
common sensitivity to economic, demographic, or business development.

Credit Risk is a Material Risk for EFS. EFS faces Credit Risks from the deposits and investments it makes with other
finandal institutions. Additionally, EFS is exposed to Credit Risk through its individual Business Lines and their
products as follows:

s Elavon Merchant Services - On balance sheet Credit Risks arises as a result of non-payment of fees from
Merchants and/or receivables due fromissuing Banks, as well as fees due from financel eases of terminals.
Additionally, off-balance sheet credit risks relate to thé contingent liabilities arising from merchant
processing {e.g. chargeback-related credit risks).

* Corporate Payment Systems - Underwriting andassociated CreditRisk arising from corporate credit cards
issued to CPS customers.
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» Depositary Services - Thereis nodirect Credit Risk in the Depositarybusiness. However, Credit Risk can arise
indirectly in instances where a customer insolvency event occurs.

s Global Corporate Trust Services - The GCT business presents no material considerations from a Credit Risk
perspective.

These Credit Risk exposures drive credit strategy, policy, risk appetite and monitoring.

Credit risk approval is undertaken by professionals o perating within an approved and defined delegated authority
matrix. Exposures are approved according to a system of tiered individual authorities which reflect credit
competence, proven judgement and experience. All exposures above certain levels require a pproval by the Credit
Management Committee. Credit limits are approved in accordance with the Group's written risk policies and
guidelines.

Exposure to credit risk is managed at origination and through-the-cycle by analysis and regular review of a
counterparty’s ability to meetits obligations to the Group; the criterion for acceptable underwriting is set outin the
relevant Credit Risk policies.

Additionally, the Group obtain collateral and guarantees from customers where appropriateto reduce and manage
credit risk.

Delayed settlement is also utilised as a tool for mitigatingchargebackrisk for some customers, Monitoring of credit
riskis enahled through exposure monitoring and current business and financial informationto support the credit risk
management of individual exposures in addition to portfolio level management. Credit risk oversight reporting is
provided to senior management through the Credit Management Committee.

I Credit Ratings I
Counterparty L:Ogo::;:\ S:;:to::rsm lons;s"l‘:rm Shoft&:erm
Barclay's Banklreland Plc WR WR A Al
BNP Paribas Aa3 P-1 At Al
Danske Bank AS A2 P-1 A Al
HSBC BankPlc Al P-1 At Al
Bank of Nova Scotia Aa2 P-1 A+ Al
SEB AB Aa2 P-1 A+ A-l
US Bank NA Al P-1 AA- Al+

Expected Credit Loss

The Group utilises a range of Expected Credit Loss { "ECL") models and/or other quantitative methods which are
specific to the characteristics and behaviours displayed within each of EFS’ credit portfolios. An overview of the
methodology behind each portfolio ECL approach is outlined as follows:
¢ Elavon Merchant Services (“EMS”) Portfolio
o For the EMS exposures, creditloss expectations increase when the merchantis unwilling or unable to
reimburse the Groupfor services provided and chargebacks, whichthen begin to agein the collections
database. These ageingreceivables and chargebacks are written off at the point wherebythe cashflow
is nolonger expected to be recoverable. Therefore the lifetime of receivables are expected to be [ess
than &6 months.
o An ECL mode! based on Probability of Default (“PD”), Loss Given Default {“(GD"} and Exposure at
Default (“EAD") parameters are utilised to generate the ECL estimate.
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o The mode! separates the portfolio into key behavioural segments and applies the appropriate
parameters to determine the lifetime loss provision required to manage the inherent risk.

o For Opayo exposures, although part of the EMS portfolio, the expected credit loss has been calculated
using a separate ECl. model. The Opayo model includes a provision matrix which uses loss rates
calculated by ageing bucket, applied to current gross carrying amounts, to determine a quantitative
expected loss.

o Asaresultof thewrite off policy, a realised loss net of recoveries of EUR 8,405 thousand was recognised
in 2020 (2019: EUR 4,045 thousand).

* Corporate Payment Systems {“CP5”) Portfolio

o CPSfacilities require full payment in every billing cycle. Balances do notrevolve and charge-off occurs
when the account begins the month at 150 days past due.

o The ECL for the CPS portfolio is formed from a roll-rate forecast. The model projects a portfolio
distribution across a range of five delinquency buckets.

o The roll-rates are conservative in terms of how they measure migration, The approach assumes al}
amounts within eachbucket have deteriorated from the higher risk bucket in the preceding month,

o TheCPS loss forecast methodology considers 12 months of forecasted losses. This forecastis compared
against the historical average to inform the final ECL amount for the CPS portfolio

» Global Corporate Trust Services (“GCTS") Portfolio
o Toestimatethe ECLfor investment service fee receivables, a provision matrix has been developed. The
provision matrix is constructed by examining a series of default rates across the delinquency risk
buckets. The provision matrix is updated monthly to adjust for current actual losses.
o The provision matrix uses loss rates calculated by ageing bucket, applied to current gross carrying
amounts, to determine a quantitative expected loss.
o GCTS receivables are written off in the month they become 365 days past due,

The Group’s ECLmethodologies include 2 qualitative management overlay - whichisundertaken post-quantitative
model/calculation output —that seeks to make prudent adjustments regarding:
+ changes in economic scenarios to estimate a refined forward-looking ECL adjustment; and
» portfolio specific provisions that are not captured within the quantitative methodology or correlate to
macroeconomics factors i.e. management judgement overlay

The qualitative overlay is calculated monthly and re-assessed on a quarterly basis. The qualitative macroeconomic
reviewis designed to provide an outlook on the economicenvironments which the Group is exposed to. Three key
economic variables have been established to inform potential forward economic environment changes. These
economic indicators have been determined to be the most appropriate given the nature andlevel of complexity in
the portfolio:

s Gross Domestic Product;

e Unemployment; and

e Three month interbank lending rate,

The EMS portfolio continues to observe signs of stress under COVID-19 that is not reflected inthe modelled economic
adjustments used in the ECL quantitative calculation. In this regard, the qualitative overlay has been applied to
ensure expected loss impacts remain sufficient for the lifetime of expected losses from current receivables given the
increased risk of refunds and chargebacks. This management overlay was focussed on sectors most impacted by
COVID-19 by applying sectoral specific stress factors to the base model assumptions.

Thedefinitionof default is also critical to the calculation of expected credit losses, as probability of default, exposure
atdefaultandloss givendefaultare three of the key variablesinthe caloulation process. At each reporting date the
Group needs to assess whether the credit risk assodated with a2 fi nendal instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. To do this, the Group uses the changein therisk of a default occurring over the expected life of
the financial instrument, rather than the changes in the size of the loss if the default were to occur.
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Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the Group’s Merchant receivables, Commercial
loan receivables and Investment services receivables.

| Expected Credit Losses I

In thousands of Euro Merchant Commerdial loans . Investment
receivables receivables services receivables
Expected Credit Loss asat 1 January 2020 575 26 19
{Decrease)/Increaseincument year 1,587 {5) (5}
| Expected Credit Loss as at 31 December 2020 2,162 21 14
Market Risk

Market Risk arises from fluctuations ininterest rates, foreign exchange rates, andsecurity prices that may resultin
changes in the values of financial instruments, suchas trading and avaiable-for sale securities, mortgage loans held
for sale, mortgage servidng rights (“MSRs"), and derivatives that are accounted for ona fair-value basis. The Group's
primary exposures to market risks are foreign exchange and interest rate risk as detailed below.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on its
finandal position and cash flows. The Board sets limits on thelevel of exposure whichare monitored and managed
daily. The ALMC has respensibility for monitoring compliance with the asset and liability management palicies,
including foreign exchange exposures.

The table below is a sensitivity analysis which demonstrates the effects of potential 5% adverse movements in
exchange rates of the given currencies versus the Euro. The mitigating effects of the forward contracts outstanding
atyearend areincluded in the analysis. Intergroup balances, although netted on a Group level, haveanimpacton
the analysis and are therefore also included.

| Foreign Exchange Risk |
2020 2019
In thousands of Euro Statement 2020 Statement 20}9
Equity Equity
] of Income of Income
GBP (124) 16,100 (358) 12,216
NOK 24 1,574 49 1,607
PLN 59 683 (103} 690
UsD (226) - {273) -
| Total (267) 18,367 (685) 14,513 |
Interest Rate Risk

To minimise the volatility of netinterestincome andthe market value of assets and liabilities, the Group monitors
its exposure to changes in interest rates through asset and liability management activities within the guiddines
established by the ALMC and approved by the Board.

The ALMC has res ponsibility for monitoring compliance with the ALMC policy, incuding interest risk exposure. The
Group uses netinterestincome simulation and market value risk analysis for measuring and analysing interest rate
risk.

The table below is a sensitivity analysis which demonstrates the effects of a 25bps adverse and 200bps positive

gradual ramp in interest rates over 12 months forthe Group, which isin line with the requirements of the EBA IRRBB
Guidelines (EBA/GL/2018/02):
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l Interest Rate Risk

2020 Statement of 2019 Statement of
In thousands of Euro .
income income
-25bps  +200bps -25bps +200bps
Interestfrom central banks (11,628} 95,448 | (9,945) 81,630
Interestfrom other banks (386) 3,091 {423) 1,647
. . . . 4
Interef.tlncomefrom affiliate companies on fixed term (30) 243 (31) 244
deposits
Interest expense on overdraft 1 (10) 16 (132)
Interest expense - corporate trust deposits 8,373 (62,755) 8,169 (57,151)
| Total (3,670) 36,017 | {(2,214) 26,238 |
Operational Risk

The Group defines operational risk as theriskto current or projected financial condition and resilience arising from
inadequate or failed internal processes or systems, people (induding human errors) or adverse external events,
including the risk of loss resulting from breaches in data security. Operational risk can alsoindude the risk of loss
dueto failures by third parties with which EFS does business. This definitionincludes legal risk, but excludes strategy
and reputation risk, although these may be impacted by operational risk events.

The Group manages Operational Risk through its Risk Management Framework and Internal Control Framework, and
supporting procedures, policies and prooesses. Management has direct and primary responsibility and accountability
for identifying, assessing, contralling, and monitoring operational risks embedded in their business activities. The
Group maintains a system of controls with the objective of providing pr oper transaction authorisation and execution,
safeguarding of assets frommisuse or theft, and ensuring the reljability of financialand other data. Management is
responsible for ensuring that the controls are appropriate and are implemented as designed.

Information technology, information security and cybersecurity are contained within the overall operational risk
framework, with an embedded programme of work to identify, assess and enhance the control environment to
address new and emerging threat vectors. Programmes are in place to protect the integrity and avaliablllty of
systems and mitigate the impacts of potential cyber-attacks.

Compliance Risk

The risk thatthe Company maysufferlegal or regulatory sanctions, financial |osses and reputational damage if the
Company fails to adhere to Compliance Requirements and U.S. Bancorp Compliance policies. The Group manages
Compliance Risk through a defined and documented framework {policies, procedures, systems, tools, roles and
responsibilities) that facilitates required Compliance Risk management activities, such as oversight, planning risk
identification, risk assessment, risk mitigation (control environment), testing, corrective action and issue
management, and reporting and escalation.

Anti-Money Laundering (AML) Risk

Therisks associated withthe Company’s noncompliance with alllaws and regulations designed to prevent and detect
money laundering, terrorist financing and economic sanctions. The Group manages AML risk through its AML
Framework, including through its AML policies and supporting procedures and controls..

Liquidity Risk

Liquidityrisk is defined at EFS as therisk that the Bank has insufficient funds to meet its financial obligations as and
when they fall due, resulting in an inabifity to support normal business activity. Maintaining adequate levels of
liquidity depends on the institution’s ability to efficiently meet both expected and unexpected cash flow needs
without adversely affecting daily operations or the financial condition of the institution.
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Treasuryis responsible for liquidityrisk of the Group acting uponday-to-day operations set forth by policies written
and approved by the EFS Board and ALMC, Additionally, Treasury is responsible for the Bank’s Liquidity Risk
Management programme andits supporting artefacts, i nduding the production of the Bank’s annual ILAAP andthe

Contingency Funding Plan.

| Assets by their contractual undiscounted cash flows

Demand and
in thousands of Euro lessthan1l l;r:‘r::t:‘os 1F2r :nr::::s ?nv:l:ttzs Total
month
Balances at central banks 8,886,266 - - - 8,886,266
Duefrom banks 403,260 - - - 403,260
Receivables fromissuingbanks 184,153 10 - 1,151 185,314
Merchant receivables 773 955 - 110,042 111,770
Investment services receivables 7 - 2,728 8,673 11,408
Currenttaxasset - 475 66 210 751
Other assets 109 - - 37,345 37,454
i Asat 31 December 2020 9,474,568 1,440 2,794 157,421 9,636,223 |
| Assets by their contractual undiscounted cash flows |
Demand and Fromé
in thousands of Euro lessthan1 From 1 :.o to12 Over 112 Total
month 6 months months months
Balances at central banks 7,580,668 - - - 7,580,668
Duefrom banks 329,165 - - - 329,165
Receivables fromissuing banks 398,426 32 - 84,193 482,651
Merchant receivables 1,357 275 - 75,606 77,238
Investmentservices receivables 42 1 1,931 11,048 13,022
Other assets 2,001 358 - 37,370 39,729
I Asat 31 December 2019 8,311,659 666 1,931 208,217 8,522473 1
| Liabilities by their contractual undiscounted cash flows |
Demand and
In thousands of Euro lessthan1 Fromito6  Frométo Over12 Total
month months 12 months months
Overdrafts 314 . - - 314
Merchant payables 414,598 3,360 - - 417,958
Corporate Trustdeposits 8,295,994 - - - 8,295,944
Currenttax liability - 16 9 3 28
Other liabilities 10,727 55 7 60 10,849
[ As at 31 December 2020 8,721,633 3,431 16 63 8,725,143 1
[ Liabilities by their contractual undiscounted cash flows ]
Demand and
in thousands of Euro lessthan1 From1to6  From6to Over 12 Total
months 12 months months
month
Overdrafts 723 - - - 723
Merchant payables 602,128 35,969 - - 638,097
Corporate Trust deposits 6,888,168 - - - 6,888,168
Other liabilities 2,265 33 - - 2,298
[ As at 31 December 2019 7,493,284 36,002 - - 7,529,286 i
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The Group uses the fol lowing hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by
valuation technique:
¢ Level 1: quoted {unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
* Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are
observable, either directly or indirectly.
¢ Level 3: techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not
based on observable market data.

Set outbelow is a comparisonby class, of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Group’s finandial instruments .

The carrying amount of 2ll the Group's financial i nstruments not measured at fair value, approximate to their fair
value due to their short term nature.

| Fair Value Hierarchy |
Levell Levell Level2 Level2 | Level3 Level3
In thousandsof Euro Fair Carrying Fair Carrying Fair Carrying
Value Amount Value Amount Value Amount
Finandal Assets
Foreign exchange forward contracts - - 667 667 - -
| Asat 31 December 2020 - . 667 667 - -

Finandial Liabilities

Foreign exchange forward contracts - - (325) (325) | - -
[ Asat 31 December 2020 - - (325) {325) - -1
| Fair value Hie rarchy i
Levell Levell tevel2 Level2 | Level3 Level3
in thousands of Euro Fair Carrying Fair Carrying Fair Carrying
Value Amount Value Amount Value Amount
Financial Assets
Foreign exchange forward contracts - - 373 373 - -
J Asat 31 December 2019 - - 373 373 - -

Finandal Liabilities
Foreign exchange forward contracts - - {303) {303) - -
[ Asat 31 December 2019 - - (303) {303} - - |

Foreign Exchange Forward Contracts

The valuation technique used for foreign exchange forward contracts is based on active market rates, which are
foreign exchange spot and forwardrates. As the foreign exchange trades are undertaken withthe Group’s ulimate
parent, U.S. Bancorp, the rate agreed is verified and matched against the daily prevailing rate available on the
market. The daily gain or loss on the foreign exchange contracts is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of
Income,

Other Assets and Liabilities Held at Fair Value

Other assets and liabilities held at fair value by the Group, outside the scope of IFRS 13, Fair Value Measuremert,
include share based payments and pension plan assets.
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Legal proceedings

Fromtimeto timeandin thenormal course of business, claims are made against the Group. Legal provisions consist
of both litigationand claim costs, arising fromthe ordinary course of business. As at 31 December 2020 thereis no
provision for legal proceedings (2019: nil).

Merchant processing — charge-backs

The Group provides merchant processing services. Under the rules of credit card associations, a merchant processor
retains a contingent liability for credit card transactions processed. This contingent liability arises in the event of a
claim arising between the parties to a transaction that is ultimatel yresolved in the cardholder’s favour andfor which
no defence to liability under the card scheme rules applies.

In this situation, the transactionis “charged back” to the merchant’s account andthe disputed amount is credited or
otherwise refunded to the cardholder by the issuing bank If the Group is unable to collect this amount from the
merchant, it bears the loss for the amount claimed by the issuing bank.

A cardholder, under the card scheme rules, generally has until the fater of up to four months after the date the
transaction is processed or the receiptof the product or serviceto present a charge-back claim. Pursuantto one of
the various calculations used to assess such contingendes, the Group’s absolute maximum potential liability is
estimated to be the total volume of credit card transactions that meet the assodiations’ requirements to be valid
charge-back transactions at any given time. If this methodology were to be used management estimates that the
maximum potential exposure for charge-backs would approximate the total amount of merchant transactions
processed through the creditcard associations for the last four months. This amount totalled approximately EUR 72
billion {2019: EUR 14.2 billion). In most cases, this contingent liability is unlikely to arise, as most products and
services aredelivered when purchased and amounts are refunded when items are retumed to merchants. However,
where the product or service has been purchased but is not provided until a future date (“future delivery”), the
potential for this contingent liability increases.

To mitigate this risk, the Group may require the merchant to make an escrow depaosit, place maximum volume
limitations on future delivery transactions processed by the merchant at any pointin time, or require various credit
enhancements {induding letters of credit and bank guarantees). Also, merchant processing contracts may include
event triggers to providethe Group more financial and operational contral in the event of fi nancial deterioration of
the merchant.

In the eventa merchant was unable to fulfil product or services subject to future delivery, such as airline tickets, and
other card scheme rule provisions are fulfilled, the Group could become financially liable under the charge-back
pravisions contained in the card scheme rules. Charge-back risk related to these merchants can be evaltuated in a
manner similar to credit risk assessments and, utilisng a similar mode of assessment for the Group, merchant
processing contracts contain various provisions to protect the Group in the event of default. As at 31 December
2020, the value of aidine tickets purchased to be delivered at a future date was EUR 2.2 billion (2019: EUR 2 7 billion).
The Group has received a guarantee from U 5. Bankforthis airline exposure. The Group drew down onthis guarantee
in 2020, see note 31 for more details.

In the normal course of business, the Group has unresolved charge-backs. The Group assesses the likelihood of is
potential liability based on the extent and nature of unresolved charge-backs and its historical loss experience As at
31 December 2020, the Group held EUR 112.3 million (2019: EUR 195.9million) of merchant escrow deposits anda
recorded provision for potential losses of EUR 439 thousand {2019: EUR 47 thousand).

Merchant processing — Expected credit loss

Expected credit losses are presented net within merchant receivables on the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position. Please see details in Note 26 {page 64} for additional information on expected credit losses.
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Asset Retirement Obligation {ARO)

As part of its various business operations throughout Europe the Group has entered into various leasehold
agreements with landlords in respect of the offi ce buildings used by its employees, These leasehold agreeme nts will
include various standard clauses. One such clauseincludes a requirement for the tenant to make good any changes
made to the property during the period of thelease {(known either as “ditapidations’ or ‘leasehold restorations’).

Adilapidations claimis the overall process associated withan allegation of a breach of the clause under the lease in
relation to the condition of the premises. The claimusually occurs attheend of a leaseterm but in some cases can
occur during thelease term. it has been determined that each building needs to be considered on its own merits, as
to what works will be required. To this end, the Group’s Real Estate & Facilities Manager (a member of the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors) has been in discussion with a reputable third party firmto ascertainguide costs
for the leasehold portfolio taking i nto account the location of the buildings and similar dilapidations expenses in
those locations.

[ Pravisions |
In thousands of Euro Remediation Charge'b'ad& Asset Reth:emem Total
Provision Provision Obligation
Opening provision - 47 1,868 1,815
Increase/ {decrease) in current
year provision - 392 887 1,279
[ As at 31 December 2020 - 439 2,755 3,194 |
| provisions |
Remediation Chargeback Asset Retirement
In thousands of Euro Provision Provision Obligation Total
Openingprovision 2,832 196 2951 5979
Charges for the period {2,832) {4,744) - (7,576)
Increase/ (decrease) in current
year provision - 4,595 {1,083) 3,512
| Asat 31 December 2019 - 47 1,868 1,915 |
29 Immediate and Ultimate Parent Undertaking

The Group’s immediate Parent undertaking is Elavon European Holdings B.V., @ company incorporated in the
Netherlands with a registered office at Prins Bernhardplein, 200, 1097 JB Amsterdam, Netherlands.

The Group’s ultimate Parent undertaking is U.S. Bancorp, a company incorporated in Delaware, U.S.A.

The Group’s immediate controling party is Bavon European Holdings B.V. The Group’s ultimate controlling party isUS.
Bancorp.

The Parent undertaking of the smallest and largest group of undertakings for which Group Financial Statements are
drawn up, and of which the Groupis a member, is U.5. Bancorp, a companyincorporated inDefaware, U.S.A. Coples of
the U.S. BancorpFinancial Statements are available from that uitimate Parent’s web site at usbank.com or by mail from
the ultimate Parent’s investor relations department.
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30 Subsidiary Undertakings

The Bank had the following subsidiaries as at 31 December 2020:

USB Nominees (GCT)

EFS Depositary Nominees

Subsidiary name Limited Limited Norse Nordics AB
First Floor, Building 8, First Floor, Building 8, i tz‘:“;';

Registeredoffice { Cherrywood Business Park, | Cherrywood Business Park, 241 ;gg;:.n 5 !
Loughlinstown, Dublin Loughlinstown, Dublin Ingsas,

) B ] Sweden
Princdipal activity Currentlyno activity Currently no activity PaymentServices
Share Capital 0.01 12,000,000 50,000
Nominal value EUR1 EUR 1 SEK1

Type of shares Ordinary Shares Ordinary Shares Ordinary Shares
Shareholder 0 1,244,269 50,000
number

Par Value EUR 0.01 EUR 0.06 SEK1.00
Shareholders'

Capitalin EUR EUR 0.01 EUR 74,656 EUR 4,627
Shareholder’s . . )
Premium Nil Nil Nil
Total

Shareholder’s Nil EUR 74,656 EUR 4,627
Equity

The Bank had the following subsidiaries asat 31 December 2020 {continued);

Subsidiary name

Elavon Digital Europe
Limited

Elavon Digitaltreland
Limited

Elaven Digital {Dublin)
Limited

Q16 Quorum Business Park,

Building 8, Cherrywood

Building 8, Cherrywood

Registeredoffice Benton Lane, Newcastle, Business Park, Business Park,

NE12 8BX Loughlinstown, D18 W319 Loughlinstown, D18 W319
Prindpal activity PaymentServices Payment Services PaymentServices
Share Capital 833,933 20,532,079 123,057
Nominal value GBP 0.0001 EUR1 EUR 1269730001

Type ofshares Ordinary Shares Ordinary Shares Ordinary Shares
Shareholder

number 8,339,335,361 20,532,079 123,057
Par Value GBP0.01 EUR1 EUR1.27
Shareholders'

Capital in EUR EUR 94,431,955 EUR 20,532,079 EUR 156,247
Shareholder's Nil Nil Nil
Premium

Total

Shareholder’s EUR 94,431,955 EUR 20,375,830 EUR 156,247
Equity
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The Bank had the following subsidiaries as at 31 December 2020 (continued):

Subsidiary name

Elavon Digital {GB) Limited

Elavon Digital GmbH

Sage Pay SLU

Registeredoffice

Q16 Quorum Business Park,
Benton Lane, Newcastle,
NE12 8BX

FranklinstraBe 61-63, 60486
Frankfurtam Main

¢/ Llabastida 10-12, 28934,
Madrid |

Principal activity

Payment Services

Currentlyno activity

Currentlyno activity

Share Capital

2

25,000

3,006

Nominat value

GBP1

EUR1

EUR1

Type of shares Ordinary Shares Ordinary Shares Ordinary Shares
Shareholder p 25,000 3,006
number

Par Value GBP2 EUR 1 EUR1
Shareholders'

Capitalin EUR EUR 2 EUR 25,000 EUR 3,006
Sharehclder's . . .
Premium Nil Nil Nil
Total

Shareholder’s EUR 2 EUR 25,000 EUR 3,006
Equity

31 Related Party Transactions

The Group had total borrowings from U.S. Bancorp as at 31 December 2020 of nit (2019: nil). The Group had no short
term borrowings fromU.S. Bancorp during 2020{2019: nil). The Group alsoenters i nto foreign exchange transactions
with U.S, Bancorp, details of which can be found in Note 18. '

The Group had EUR 8,305 thousand depaosits with U.S. Bancorp as at 31 December 2020 {2019: EUR 22,166 thousand).
All of these were cash deposits in 2020 and 2019. There were no bank processing fees from affiliated companies on
EUR deposits during 2020 (2019: EUR nil).

The Group also entered into day-to-day transactions with U.S. Bancomp and its subsidiaries, mainly comprising the
recharging of various costs incurred and transfer pricing. The net income associated with services provided by or to
affiliated companies totalled EUR 5,406 thousand during 2020 {2019: EUR 883 thousand net cost).

The Group has a net receivable from affiliate companies of EUR 23,590 thousand as at 31 December 2020{2019: EUR
13,004 thousand receivable). The entities whichowed amounts to the Group as at 31 December 2020 are U.S. Bancorp,
.5. Bank National Association, Elavon Inc., U.S. Bancorp Fund Services LLC, U.S. Bank Global Fund Services (Irdand)
Limited, U.S. Bank Globat Fund Services {Guernsey) Limited U.S. Bank Global Fund Services (Cayman)Limited, U.S. Bank
Gl obal Corporate Trust Limited, Quintillion Services Limited, USB Securities Data Services Limited, U.S. Bank Global Fund
Services (Luxembourg) Sarl, Talech International Limited (Ireland) and Talech Lithuania UAB.

As at 31 December 2020 the Group has received a guarantee from U.S. Bank for airline exposures. During 2020, the
Group drew down EUR 1,869 thousand fromits guarantee from U.S. Bank to cover acredit foss in refationto airlines.

73



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 Related Party Transactions (continued)

The Group grants stock-based awards of restricted stock units. Restricted stockunit grants are awarded at no cost o
therecipient. Stock-based compensation for awards isrecognised in the Group’s results on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period. The cost of these awards for 2020 totalled EUR 830 thousand (2019: EUR 733 thousand).

| Related Party Transactions - Key Management Compensation

in thousands of Euro 2020 2019

Short-termbenefits:

Salaries 4,238 4,239

Short-termbonuses 1,077 927

Directors’ fees 140 160

Car allowances 323 314

Club subscriptions 3 3

Dividends 4 9

Other 58 61

Remuneration in respect of Termination Payments 546 1,017

Long-termbenefits

i.ong-term bonuses 388 336

Share-based paymentbenefits

Restricted stock units 1,128 1,091

Post-employment be nefits:

Contributions to defined contribution plans 464 499
| Total 8,369 8,656 |

The staffinduded i n Key Management are Identified Staff in accordance withEBA guidance,

32 Capital Management

The Group maintains an actively managed capital base to cover risks inherent in the business. The adequacy of the
Group's capital is monitored using, among other measures, the rules andratios established by the Basel Committee in
Banking Supervision and implemented into law by the European Commission and by the Central Bank of Irdland, in

supervising the Group.

The primary objectives ofthe Group's capital management are to ensure that the Group maintains healthy capitzl ratios
in orderto supportits business and that the Group complies with externallyimposed capital requirements. The Group
manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk

characteristics of its activities.

33 Dividend Policy
No dividendwas issued fortheyear (2019: nil}.

34 SubsequentEvents

There are no subsequent events after the reporting date thatrequire disclosure if the financial statements.
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35 Approval of Finandal Statements
The Group’s Consolidated Financial Statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23 March

2021.

Where applicable, the Basis of Preparation, Accounting Policies and subsequent Notes to the Compa ny Financial
Statements are the same as the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as set out on pages 27 to 75. Any
Notes to the Company Financial Statements that differ to the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are set
out below, The Company’s investments in its subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment.
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A Fee, Commission and Leasing Income

| Fee, Commission and Leasing Income

Inthousands of Euro 2020 2019
Merchant processing services 182,189 2935942
Corporate payment products revenue 1,318 4,550
Depositary services 1,464 1,432
Corporatetrustrevenue 34,620 39,285

| Fee, commission and leasing income 219581 339209 i

B Other Qperating Income

| Other Operating Income {
In thousands of_Euro 2020 2019
Gain on revaluation of Investment - 1,502
Services providedto affiliate companies 10,532 16,170
Other operating income - other 99 403

| Other operatingincome 10,631 18,075 |

o Other Operating Expense

In 2013, the Group amended its long term incentive plan. This amendment enabled U.5. Bancorp to grant certain
empioyees shares in U.S. Bancorp as a retention incentive. The charge for these awards in 2020 was EUR 830
thousand (2019: EUR 733 thousand). As at 31 December 2020, EUR 65 thousand was payable (2019: EUR 72
thousand). The chargefor all other long termincentive awardsin 2020was EUR 4,042 thousand (2019: EUR 3,459

thousand).
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C Other Operating Expense {continued)

] Other Operating Expenses [

inthousands of Euro Note 2020 2019
Staff Costs

Wages and salaries 129,673 134,825
Social security costs 13,887 14,746
Pensioncosts - defined contributionplans 10,079 9,439
Pensioncosts - defined benefit plans 347 384
Staff costs - other 9,877 12,401
Auditor's Remuneration

Statutory audit 652 654
Other assurance services - 91

Other operatingexpenses

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 18 21,045 17,761
Amortisationof intangble assets 17 17,687 3,823
Losses fromdisposals of fixed assets S86 508
Marketingandbusiness development 9,719 11,777
Occupancyandequipment 8,228 7,933
Merchant processing 17,159 28,113
Other operating expenses - other 22,698 18,428
Bank processing fees* 24,562 22,504
Postage, printing and supplies 2,190 2,285
Professional services 11,238 15,063
Technol ogyand communications 10,851 8,562
Services provided by affiliate companies : 7,466 13,176
Total operating expenses 317,944 322,873
Foreign exchangeloss 651 1,849
j Total other operating expense 318,595 324,722}

*Bank Processing fees includes negative interest expense

Directors’ emoluments are analysed as follows:

inthousands of Euro 2020 2019
Remuneration inrespect of services as Director 210 160
Remuneration inconnection with management 1,424 1,156
Pensioncosts —defined contribution plans {other than inrespect of services as Director)* 79 73
Total Directors’ emoluments 1,713 1,389

*Pension costs relate to payments for two Directors. No payments have been paid to past Directors during the current
ar prior year.

77



Notes to the Company Financial Statements

D Income Taxes

| Income Taxes ]
In thousands of Euro Rate 2020 2019
Current Tax
idsh corporation tax
Currentyear - 2,354
Adjustmentin respect of prioryear* {2,067} 36
Release of Uncertainty Tax Provision {40,071)
Foreign tax
Currentyear 5,041 4,806
Prior year taxexpense (217) 554
Deferred tax income (8,787} 2,257
Income tax expensefor theyear (46,101) 10,407

A reconciliation of tax on profit on ordinary activities atthe standardIrish corporation taxrate to the Group’s
actualtaxchargeisas follows:

Profit before tax {83,575) 43,960
Theoretical tax charge at statutoryrate 12.5% (10,447) 5,495
Tax effect of items whichare notdeductible or assessable for taxation purposes:
{Reversal)/Addition of prior year tax {2,285) 989
Non-deductible expenses 478 363
Total temporarydifferences not accounted for in deferred tax (811) 2,642
Overseas profitstaxed at a higher rate 5,025 1,127
Exemptincome - {188)
Release of Uncertainty Tax Provision (40,071) -
TCA 1997 s396D Loss carried back to prior year 1,993 -
Other adjustments 32 (21)
| Income tax expense for the year (46,086) 10,407 |
Deferred tax as induded on the Company Statement of Financial Position:
| Deferred Taxas ]
inthousands of Euro 2020 2019

DeferredTax Liability
Tax effect of taxable temporary differences

Other intangibles: amortisation {(7,234) (1,165)
Assettiming differences (4,479) (4,447)
Foreign exchange differences - {12}
| Recognised deferred tax liability {11,713) (5,624) |
In thousands of Euro 2020 2019
DeferredTax Asset
Tax effect of taxable temporary differences
Assettiming differences 3,985 2,604
Net operating losses 6,062
Re-measurement of Defined Benefit Plan 1,i68 1,039
Exchange movements - 32
| Recognised deferred tax asset 11,215 3,675 |

* The irish prior year adjustment of €2,067K includes a portion of 2020 current yeor losses claimed In accordance with TCA 1997 s396D. This
accelerated loss reflef ks induded in the recondiliation of theoretical tax charge ond actual tox charge.
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D Income Taxes {(continued)

Underlying profit before tax forthe year ended 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016inciuded again onsale
of sharesinVisa Europe. For the purposes of taxationthis gain was considered tradingincome in nature subject to
Irish corporate tax at the rate of 12.5%. An uncertain tax provision was induded within the 2017 and 2016 current
incometax expense and continued to be carried on the balance sheet for the years 2018 and 2019inrespect of
this uncertain position given thatthe Irish taxauthorities could challenge this taxtreatment and argue that it
should betaxed as acapital receipt. However, during 2020the Irish tax authorities confirmed to Elavonthat they
were not challenging thetax treatment and hence this uncertainty provision has nowbeen released.

E Cash Balances
| Cash Balances i
in thousands of Euro 2020 2019
Cash and cash equivalents
Balances atcentral banks 8,886,266 7,580,668
Cash and balances with banks 214,489 127,888
Money market placements 153,491 179,111
Cashwithaffiliates 8,305 22,166
Total cashwith banks and affiliates 9,262,551 7,909,833
Overdrafts {314) (723)
Total cash and cash equivalents 9,262,237 7,909,110

F Merchant Receivables

As at 31 December 2020, the value of receivables from merchants was EUR 111,964 thousand (2019: EUR 77,238
thousand). Merchant receivables are presented net of expected credit losses on the Company Statement of Financial

Pasition.

G Goodwill

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each CGU or group of CGUs is:
in thousands of Euro Servlroz;?;lr;: Corporate Té;ﬁ Total Goodwill
Cost
As atlJanuary2020 136,200 9 136,209
Additions* 119,887 - 119,887
Exchange rate movements (3,127) - (3,127)

| As at 31 December 2020 252,960 9 252,969 |
Cost
As atl lanuary2019 128,079 9 128,088
Additions* 5,338 - 5,338
Exchangerate movements 2,783 - 2,783

[ Asat 31 December 2019 136,200 9 136,209 |

*additions are from business combinations
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H Intangible Assets — Other
I Intangible Assets —Other ‘ 1
Corporate
Computer Merchant
Inthousandsof Euro Software Contracts Trust Total
Contracts
Cost
Opening balance 51,529 112,329 3,123 166,981
Additions 12,530 50,936 - 63,466
Disposals {(57) - - {57)
Exchange movements {50} {4,381} (169) (4,600)
Closing balance of cost account 63,952 158,884 2,954 225,790
Accumulated amortisation
Opening balance 47,795 92,216 3,113 143124
Disposals {98) - - (98)
Amaortisationchamge for theyear 3,310 14,367 10 17,687
Exchange movements {39) {3,659} {169) (3,867)
Closing balance of the accumulated amortisation 50,968 102,924 2,954 156 846
| Net book value as at 31 December 2020 12,984 55,960 - 68,944 |
} Intangible Assets —Other i
Corporate
M
In thousands of Euro Computer erchant Trust Total
Software Contracts
Contracts
Cost
Opening balance 51,310 95,051 2,970 149331
Additions 407 14,321 - 14,728
Disposals (217) - - {217}
Exchange movements ) 29 2,957 1s3 3,139
Closing balance of cost account 51,529 112,329 3,123 166,981
Accumulated amortisation
Opening balance 45,767 87,830 2846 136,543
Disposals (211) - - (211)
Amortisationcharge for theyear 2,217 1,591 15 3,823
Exchange movements 22 2,795 152 2,969
Closing balance of the accumulated amortisation 47,795 92,216 3,113 143,124
Net bookvalue as at 31 December 2019 3,734 20,113 10 23,857
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| Property,‘ Plant and Equipment

I Property, Plantand Equipment

Premisesand  Officeand  Terminal
in thousands of Euro leasehold computer Related Total
improvements equipment Assets
Cost
Opening balance 20,585 70,209 58,789 149,583
Additions 6,509 6,081 16,824 29,414
Disposals & amounts written off (130) (305) (11,470) (11,905)
Exchange movements {347) (502} {2,713) (3,562)
Closing batance of cost account 26,617 75,483 61,430 163,530
Accumulated deprediation and write-offs
Opening balance 11,974 47,758 31,099 90,831
Disposals & amounts written off (30) (158) (9,164} {9,352)
Depreciationcharge for theyear 2,191 8,026 10,828 21,045
Exchange movements (139) (284) {1,471) (1,894)
Closing batance of the accumulated depreciation
account 13,996 55,342 31,292 100,630
l Net book value asat 31 December 2020 12,621 20,141 30,138 62,900 |
| Property, Plant and Equipment ]
Premisesand Officeand  Terminal
in thousands of Euro leasehold computer Related Total
improvemems  equipment Assets
Cost .
Openingbalance 19,427 60,352 47,408 127,187
Additions 1,288 15,200 18,257 34,745
Disposals & amounts written off (229) {5,485) (7.828)  (13,542)
Exchange movements 99 142 952 1,193
Closing balance of cost account 20,585 70,209 58,789 149,583
Accumulated deprediation and write-offs
Opening balance 11,379 42,590 26,481 80,450
Disposals & amounts written off (191) (1,770) (6,256) {8,217)
Depreciationcharge for theyear 718 6,852 10,191 17,761
Exchange movements 68 86 683 837
Closing balance of the accumulated depreciation
account 11,974 47,758 31,099 90,831
| Net book value asat 31 December 2019 8,611 22,451 27,690 58,752 |

.



Notes to the Company Financial Statements

} Leases

The leasesthatareaccounted for under |FRS 16 all relate to buildings. Periods covered by termination options are
included in the lease term only if it is reasonably certain the termination option will not be exercised.

1 Leasehold Assets

In thousands of EUR 2020 2019
At 1January 18,202 20,677
Increases* 28,519 3,499
Decreases {3,110} -
Amortisation for the year {6,530} (5,974)
Net book value at 31 December 37,081 18,202
*2020 indudes EUR 25 miifion in relation to new Cherrywood F1 Bullding

| Amounts Recognised in Profit and Loss |
In thousands of EUR 2020 2019
Depreciation on leasehold assets 6,530 5,974
interest expense on lease liabilities 763 891
Total cash outflow for leases 6,719 5,899

] Lease Liabilities !
In thousands of EUR 2020 2019
Analysed as:
Non-current 35,856 12,280
Current ] 4,726 6,212
Total 40,582 18,492

I Maturity Analysis i
in thousonds of EUR 2020 2019
Year 1 4,726 6,647
Year 2 4,481 4,458
Year 3 4,380 2,780
Year 4 3,135 2,780
Year 5 2471 1,751
Onwards 21,389 1,185

Variable lease payments

Some of the property leases in which the Group is thelessee contain variable lease payment terms thatare linked
toindexes. Variable payment terms are used to link rental payments to market related rates. The variable payments
are presentin 6 leasehold agreements. The Group expects this ratio to remain constantin future years.

Extension & termination details

| Leasehold Assets ~ Office Buildings

2020 2019
Number of Leasehold assets 10 9
Number of leases with extension options 3 1
Number of leases with variable payments linked to an index 5 4
Number of leases with termination options 1 3

82



Notes to the Company Financial Statements

K Other Assets
The following Other Assets are deemed to be current assets.

I Other Assets |
Inthousandsof Euro 2020 2019
Commercialloans-receivable 5,106 23,031
Prepayments, deferredexpenses andother receivables 11,526 9,717
Tax debtors 376 383
Other assets - other 3,169 220
Receivables from affiliate companies 43,361 14,318
Forward exchange contracts 667 373
Interestreceivable 111 629

] Asat 31 December 64,316 48,671 |

Forward exchange contracts entered into by the Company are generally traded inan over-the-counter market with
professional market counterparties on standardised contractual terms and conditions. The contracts are short-term
deposits and the | atest date of maturity for the above contracts is 28 fanuary 2021.

Forward contracts frequently involve a high degree of leverage, and a relatively small movement in a currency
exchange rate may give rise to a significant | oss. Over-the-counter derivatives may expose the Companyto the risks
associated with the absence of an exchange market on which to ciose out on an apen position. The use of
standardised contractual terms and conditions by the Companymitigates therisk. The Company has credit exposure
to the counterparties of forward contracts.

The Company settles its forward contracts on a net basis and therefore mitigates its liquidity risk. The Company’s
exposure under derivative contracts is closely monitored as part of the overall management of the Company’s

market risk.

i Forward Exchange Contracts

In thousands of Euro Notional Amount | Fair Value Assets | Fair Value Liabilities
PIN 61,965 568 -
NOK 17,094 - {91}
SEK 14,801 - (144}
CHF 7,388 - (19)
AUD 3,729 - (43)
Other 31,865 99 (28)

| Asat end of 31 December 2020 136,842 667 (325) 1

| Forward Exchange Contracts [
In thousands of Euro Notional Amount | Fair Value Assets | Fair Value Liabilities
PLN 36,193 - {159}
NOK 19,888 356 -
CHF 11,915 - (65)
AUD 1,847 - {26)
Other 28,489 17 (53)

| Asat end of 31 December 2019 98,332 373 {303) 1
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L Other Liabifities

The following Other Liabilities are deemed to be current liabilities with the exception of the Pension liability.

Other Liabilities

|

In thousands of Euro Note 2020 2019*
Accrualsandsundry creditors 45,465 49,700
Pensionliability 23 12,212 10,856
VAT and other tax creditors 3,407 6,349
Corporate payables 5,384 2,453
Deferred revenue 3,457 2,715
Forward exchange -contracts K 325 303
Payableto affiliate companies 8,223 5,879
Commercial |oans - payable 1,192 586
Interest payable 1,356 1,025
Other liabilities —other ) ) 55 67
l Asat 31 December 81,076 79,933 |

‘comparutives dasslfications have been updated for year on year comparative purposes. interest payable has been re-classed from Accruols and

sundry creditors to Interest payable

M Approval of Financial Statements
The Company Financial Statements were authorisedfor issue by the Board of Directorson 23 March 2021,
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Appendix 1
Regulatory Capital (Unaudited)

The following disclosures in relation to regulatory capital are prepared by management and do not form part of the
statutory Consolidated Finandial Statements prepared under the applicable accounting framework {IFRS as adopted by
the EU) on a Prudential basis.

The Group's regulatory capital comprises fully of Common Equity Tier1 {CET1) capital'. CET1 mainly consists of share
capital, capital contribution, retained earnings and the foreign currency translationreserve. The majority of deductions
to capital are driven by goodwill and other intangible assets.

Capital Management - Regulatory Capital per 2020 £FS DAC Finandial Statements ‘
In thousonds of Euro . S | Acuat2020] . Actual 2019
Common equity Tier 1 capitsl _ 997,085 947,420
Tier 2 capif;aa o 0
Total Capital ) 997,085 947,420

Capital Management - Capital Ratios per.latest Regulatory Submissions

1 thousondsof e Pkl auat2ots
Risk Weighted Assets 2,025,465 2,000,471
CEr1Capital Ra‘iib__ - o I 49_'.16%: o 4?.5695
Total Capital Ratio’ 49.16% 47.36%

As introduced by CRD IV theleverage ratiois designed to prevent an excessive build-up of leverage on aninstitutions
balance sheet. The ratio is defined as Tier 1 capital divided by total leverage exposures, which include on-balance
sheet items, off-balance sheet items and derivatives.

Leverage Ratio per latest Regulatory Submissions
2020 Regulat«
. egu . ory Actual 2019]
Submission *]i- :
Leverage Ratio Fully Phased Definition of Tier.1 9.35% 9.81%

The implications of the leverage ratio are being closely monitored by the Group priorto its move to a hinding
requirementin 2021. The Group expects to remain above the Basel Committeeindicated minimum leverage ratio
of 3%.

' The 2020 EFS CET 1 and Leverage Ratios are based on the curent most up to date Regulatory Submissionsand are subject to
potential minor revision upon publication of the EFS DAC Financial Stalements.
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